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2 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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4 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Directors and Senior Management
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As at 8 March 2017, the date of the Report of the Directors, the biographical
details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 70, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at Peking
University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and worked as a
professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining the Group in 2001,
Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company listed in the PRC, namely Founder
Technology Group Corporation, and a director of a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely
Founder Holdings Limited, and has work experience in international trade,
finance, asset management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured
with many awards, including being selected as the young entrepreneur with
outstanding contribution to China, and won the first prize of national golden
award for enterprise initiators in the 4th National Technology Industrialist
Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 50, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s
degree in international relations and has over 25 years of experience in the
information technology industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the
chairman, chief executive officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the
Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was
the president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 48, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated from
the Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in computer
science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining the
Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration company
and has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the financial
industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 53, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated from
Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree in law. He has over 25
years of experience in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also
a director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL in 1999, he had worked for several
companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li
has also been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company, since 24 February 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 50, is an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree in international
economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu had worked for several
companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He has over 25 years of experience in
corporate management of enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 54, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of
arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of Chartered Financial Analyst
and has over 25 years’ experience in auditing, corporate advisory services
as well as financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a major red
chip company) and an independent non-executive director of KWG Property
Holding Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 60, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a postgraduate certificate in
laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also obtained a Juris Doctor
degree from the University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been
a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the
law firm, Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public in Ontario,
Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience in law both in Hong
Kong and in Canada. He served as a member of the Inland Revenue Board
of Review from 1997 to 2005 and has been appointed as a China-appointed
Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 62, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas at Austin,
United States of America with a bachelor’s degree in Statistics and Operations
Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than 21 years of experience in electronic
payments industry in Southeast Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang
was the Senior Vice President, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”)
in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China General Manager,
Japan General Manager, and senior country manager for Singapore, Thailand,
the Philippines and Indochina. He joined the Group in 2009 as a Non-
Executive Director and was re-designated as an Independent Non-Executive
Director on 26 February 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Liao Lizhi, Mr.
Liang Jing Jing, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui and Ms. Hui Lok Yan were the Company’s
senior management.

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 37, is the president of BE7TRI I ER A A (“SXF"). He graduated
from Hubei University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in Electrical
Technology. He joined the Group in 2008. He has over 10 years of experience
in third-party payment industry management.

LIAO LIZHI

Mr. Liao, age 44, is the general manager of Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Ltd.
He graduated from Renmin University of China with a bachelor’s degree
in Corporate Management and received a master’s degree in Business
Management from Sichuan University. He joined the Group in 2005. He has
over 10 years of experience in the communication industry.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 35, is the president of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business
Solutions Information Technology Limited. He graduated from Central South
University with a bachelor’s degree in Telecommunications Engineering and
received a master’s degree in Engineering Project Management from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He joined the Group in 2003. He has over 13 years of
experience in the information technology industry.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, age 52, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou PAX Electronic
Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering, and received a master’s degree in engineering
from Tongji University. He has over 15 years of experience in corporate
management. He joined the Group in 2000.

HUI'LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 38, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration. Ms. Hui is currently
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager of an
international public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

During 2016, the consolidated revenue amounted to HK$1,921.2 million,
as compared to HK$1,376.8 million in 2015. Segmental EBITDA (before
unallocated item) totaled HK$297.1 million, 119% up compared to 2015.
Such increase was mainly contributed by the increase in transaction volume
and hence an increase in segmental turnover and segmental EBITDA of
payment processing solutions segment during the year. Profit for the year
totaled HK$312.7 million as compared to a profit of HK$192.7 million last
year.

With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$5,499.0 million, as compared to HK$4,576.5 million as at
31 December 2015. Among of which short term bank deposit and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$2,745.1 million and interest in PAX Global
amounted to HK$1,663.3 million. As at 31 December 2016, the fair value
of the Group’s 32.9% effective interest in PAX Global was approximately
HK$1,871.0 million.

Year 2016 is another encouraging year to our payment processing solutions
segment, we are making good progress in the acquisition of new merchants
and introduction of various value added solutions and services. Segmental
turnover amounted to HK$1,050.3 million, 105% up compared to last year.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$169.7 million as compared
to HK$60.3 million in 2015. By the year end of 2016, total accumulated
number of domestic merchants was exceeding 1,400,000, with a monthly
transaction volume of over RMB76 billion in December 2016. MPOS
merchants and innovative QR code payment also developed rapidly during
the year. Meanwhile, we have started installation for Smart POS in cities such
as Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen. Smart POS has enhanced the expansion
of payment areas and the scopes of application, and laid the foundation
for subsequent business layout. In addition, we have officially commenced
the cross-border payment commercial business. On the other hand, the
official implementation of the reform on transaction fee rates initiated by the
People’s Bank of China in September 2016 was expected to usher in favorable
development for innovation business, bringing positive influence to the
expansion of high value-added merchants and quasi-financial business such as
wealth management and financing.

Financial solutions segment reported turnover of HK$348.1 million in 2016,
an drop of 9% compared to last year. Segmental operating profit amounted
to HK$14.8 million, as compared to HK$14.3 million last year. Decrease
in segmental turnover was mitigated by increased profit margins during the
year. Looking forward, we will manage to seize various opportunities with the
rapid development of payment and internet finance sector and reinforce our
market position with the BIG5 (five major banks in China), joint-equity banks
and their overseas subsidiaries, while targeting the emerging city commercial
banks and fintech markets.
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Letter from the Board
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Letter from the Board
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2016 is a turnaround year to our electronic power meter and solutions
segment given our persistent effort and effective cost control measures.
Segmental turnover amounted to HK$314.8 million, 50% up as compared to
HK$209.9 million last year. Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$18.6
million, as compared to a segmental operating loss of HK$15.8 million in
last year. Increase in turnover was mainly due to increased shipment level
as compared to last year given the improved tender results. Improved in
operating result was mainly attributable to the increase in segmental turnover
and improved profit margin during the year. We will continue to strengthen
our key research and development projects, and actively undergone technical
preparation, in order to maintain the competitiveness in the market.

During the period, we integrated original telecommunication solutions and
payment platform solutions, to optimize business management of the platform
operation solutions. During the year, platform operation solutions segment
recorded turnover of HK$208.1 million, a decline of 24% as compared to
2015. Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$4.7 million, as compared
to operating profit of HK$29.6 million in 2015. The decrease in segmental
turnover and operating profit was mainly contributed by the fact that China
Mobile has established its own Interactive Voice Response (“IVR”) business
platform in 2015, leading to a reduced demand for the Group's supporting
services and thus decrease in supporting income. While the E-commerce Base
of China Mobile is insistently developing its business horizon, we will seize
the opportunity to cooperate with the base at the operation level. In addition,
we will leverage the advantage in product technology business in the area of
payment to expand new customers as well as exporting our mature products
and technical services to build new business development modes apart from
traditional support business, further maintaining long-term stable and healthy
development.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will remain focused
on financial and operation disciplines and take hold of various opportunities
for the Group’s business growth in 2016. On behalf of the Board, we would
like to take this opportunity to express our utmost gratitude to our customers,
bankers, suppliers, business associates and most valued shareholders for their
continuous trust and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Review of business performance of the Group during the Reporting Year and
the Group’s business outlook are disclosed in the section headed “Business
Review” of the Report of the Directors in this Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group reported total assets of HK$5,499.0
million (2015: HK$4,576.5 million), which were financed by total liabilities
of HK$1,913.3 million (2015: HK$1,238.6 million) and equity of HK$3,585.7
million (2015: HK$3,337.9 million). The net asset value was HK$3,585.7
million (2015: HK$3,337.9 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$1.291 as at 31 December 2016 as compared to HK$1.202 per share as at
31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$2,726.7 million (2015: HK$2,292.3 million) and no short term borrowings
(2015: Nil). The net cash position as at 31 December 2016 was HK$2,726.7
million as compared to HK$2,292.3 million as at 31 December 2015. The
gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings divided by shareholders” equity) was
zero (2015: same). The gearing ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the
continuing growth of the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no bank borrowings (2015: Nil) and
had banking facilities of approximately HK$17.8 million (2015: HK$21.2
million). As at 31 December 2016, the banking facilities were secured by
the leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary of the Company, with a
net carrying amount of HK$2.9 million (2015: HK$3.2 million) and HK$9.3
million (2015: HK$11.0 million), respectively.

Approximately HK$1,977.7 million, HK$468.6 million, HK$273.8 million,
HK$0.2 million and HK$6.4 million of the Group’s cash balances were
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Japanese Yen, and
Macanese Pataca (“MOP”) respectively as at 31 December 2016.

Approximately HK$1,403.0 million, HK$522.7 million, HK$271.9 million,
HK$87.9 million and HK$6.8 million of the Group’s cash balances were
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Japanese Yen and
MOP respectively as at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BOLNG 2 wk i 5L 3 B

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2016.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2016.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases, incurs expenses and has
its assets and liabilities denominated mainly in US Dollars, Renminbi, Hong
Kong Dollars and Japanese Yen. Currently, the Group has not entered into
any agreements or purchased instruments to hedge the Group’s exchange rate
risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong Dollars,
Renminbi or Japanese Yen may have an impact on the operating results of the
Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee agreement
with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Performance Guarantee Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the
customer with a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance
of a service project by a subsidiary of the Group with a surety of not more
than HK$60,000,000 and to indemnify the customer against any third-party
claim of intellectual property right infringement resulting from the acts of the
said subsidiary. As at 31 December 2016, the Company does not recognise
any liability in relation to the Performance Guarantee Agreement as the
Directors of the Company consider the possibility of the Company recognising
forthcoming liability thereunder highly improbable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent liability as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was
2,006. The breakdown of employees by division is as follows:

BOLE 2wk i L 3 By

==

AEER -_ZE—R"E+-_A=+—HBZREEHA
2,006 A c EEZRIFIAEDWT ¢

Payment processing solutions XNRGBREBERF R 554
Financial solutions SRBATE 282
Electronic power meters and solutions B BERMRBAFR 455
Platform operation solutions TREBBANE 667
Others HAh, 10
Corporate office B 38

2,006

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive and
competitive. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus
annual performance related bonuses. The Group operates a share option
scheme and an employees’ incentive scheme, the details of which are set out
in the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected employees to
attend external training courses that suit the needs of the Group’s businesses.

Disclaimer:

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures, such
as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s performance. These non-GAAP
measures are not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong
and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an
alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating performance
of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as
a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely
to enhance the overall understanding of the Group’s current financial
performance. Additionally, as the Group has historically reported certain non-
GAAP results to investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP
measures provides consistency in our financial reporting.

AEERGEFMEELEAAERT ) MES
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4 - AEERABRES I NERRRHE A
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RAERTEGECERAMEALAEBRERS
BE)IZERIEL IR RE(EAEERDE
SIZEE - REIELR S RAEZRMAE BN
HAREBBRIMBRAZBEER - 1o ARAK
EENEERREEREE THEBIELAREHRE
HEZEE  AUWAEERARIEEARSRA
BEULAEE M RERE I -



12 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Report of the Directors

L ki)

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The principal
activities of the Group are provision of payment processing solutions,
provision of financial solutions, sales of electronic power meters and solutions
and provision of platform operation solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 69.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2015: Nil).

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer given there
will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement of the shareholders
of the Company to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting will be
Tuesday, 18 April, 2017. All transfers of shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 18 April, 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and in notes 26 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees in
order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme (the “Participants”) include the Group’s full-time
employees, executive and non-executive Directors. The Scheme became
effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date. Further
details of the Scheme can be found in the circular of the Company dated 28
March 2011.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme, and any
other share option schemes of the Company in issue, shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the relevant class of securities of the Company in issue as
at the date of approval of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from its Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options granted to each
Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities
of the Company in issue in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options
in excess of the aforesaid 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders of the Company with such Participant and his/her associates
abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for issue under
the Scheme, representing 9.63% of the total number of Shares in issue.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the Directors,
and such period shall commence on the date of the offer of the options (the
“Offer Date”) and expire on the last day of such period which must not exceed
10 years.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee
before the option can be exercised.

A share option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly
signed by the Participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion of the
Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the Offer Date, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities (“Trading Day”); (ii) a price being the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.
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No share option of the Company was granted or exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, and up to the date of this
report, there was no issued and outstanding share option under the Scheme
which has not been exercised or lapsed.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounted to HK$77,820,000 (2015: HK$98,586,000). The
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$1,290,857,000
(2015: HK$1,290,857,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 180.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BUSINESS REVIEW b)Y
CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS AR ERAT
Turnover
BXR EBITDA
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-RF TS ZB-RF —ZT-1F
(restated) (restated)
(E71) (Z71))
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
BT FET BT TET
Payment processing solutions INRFGREBRATE 1 1,050,313 511,188 253,239 99,917
Financial solutions FRBRAR L 2 351,407 384,147 26,473 26,814
Electronic power meters and solutions %ﬁﬁﬁ'iﬁﬁ: &ﬁ%?&ﬁ% 3 314,778 209,860 22,744 (10,990)
Platform operation solutions TaBEERARR 4 210,766 277,828 8,055 35,292
Others Hit, - - (13,438) (15,557)
Segmental results NREE 1,927,264 1,383,023 297,073 135,476
Less: Inter-segment turnover D EREES (6,027) (6,177) - -
Total At y 1,921,237 1,376,846 297,073 135,476
Depreciation e (92,589) (52,645)
Amortisation B (10,504) (10,763)
Segmental operating profit DEEE R 193,980 72,068
Unallocated other income AR ELABBEA 4,900 7,226
Unallocated corporate expenses AOELERY (66,557) (72,801)
Operating profit R 132,323 6,493
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT fHRLRE R E R
2016 2015
—E-RE “T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Revenue WA A ¢ 1,921,237 1,376,846
Cost of sales HEKAK B (1,328,542) (899,262)
Gross profit E7 592,695 477,584
Other income Ef A 46,205 47,249
Other loss Hi g (1,120 -
Selling expenses HERX B (101,631) (134,839)
Administrative expenses THEHA B (403,826) (383,501)
Operating profit R 132,323 6,493
Share of results of investments accounted for AR EARRERE
using the equity method C 198,992 198,218
Gain/(loss) on dilution of interest in an investment DEREARZEBE
accounted for using the equity method EagEls (B8) C 826 (8,442)
Profit before income tax B% P15 Bt A& A 332,141 196,269
Income tax expense FTiSHiFA Y (19,485) (3,577)
Profit for the year FREF 312,656 192,692
Profit attributable to: EfEEM:
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAEFERFEA 283,964 183,486
— Non-controlling interests —IFER RS 28,692 9,206
312,656 192,692
HKS per share  HKS per share
BRET FROETT
Earnings per share for profit attributable FRREREE ARG
to equity holders of the Company: a2 BRER:
Basic X 0.102 0.066
Diluted -5 0.100 0.064
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET RS EEAER
As at 31 December
RT=-HA=+t-H
2016 2015
HK$'000 HI%IO0,0
B BT
ASSETS B, ., ]
Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and leasehold land 3% &4 % “WE BEAREREELH D 301,383 249,908
Intangible assets BT . E 10,466 18,855
Investments accounted for using the equity method L}{IE*%)\EE RE F 1,663,250 1,525,040
Available-for-sale financial assets A %’\§ Lo G 106,113 ,
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss A E% Enl eREE H 76,880 -
Inventories = . | 74,972 53,113
Trade and bills receivables J%W%ﬂ’&ﬁ%ﬂg%ﬁfﬁ . . J 243,534 235,589
Receivables from payment processing solutions business iﬁx%@@%?&%%%%;ﬁ?%ﬂlﬁ ] - 115,642
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hope s E\H«J{Qﬁ e J 41,474 44,883
Amounts due from investments accounted for using the equity method ~ JEWRLAE g2 2 A J PRES 5% K 13,258 10,761
Tt i ot
ash and cash equivalents FRERSED ; 1726, 1292,
Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale ’ﬁ‘%%ﬁ@%?tﬁ%ﬁ%%éé M 222,590 -
Total assets BEEAE 5,499,041 4,576,515
FQuITY . . % s
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders ARAERBRAEABRLERARRE
Share capital 6,942 6,942
Reserves il 3,524,274 3,301,886
3,531,216 3,308,828
Non-controlling interests FERER 54,451 16
Total equity EREE 3,585,667 3,337,944
LIABILITIES &
Deferred income tax liabilities %%P EEE% 205 132
Trade and bills payables ERRR %gﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ, L 266,270 201,223
Pa?/]ables for payment processing solutions business TR B RER ) i%f%ZﬁEﬁfWE L 787,667 472,912
Other payables‘and accruals AN RERIERTAE L 646,400 467,030
Amounts due to investments accounted for using the equity method isgqt ﬁ}féﬁ%%&ﬁZﬁﬁE K 81,468 70,912
Current income tax liabilities 25 ;‘Q?FEE - 34,884 26,362
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale DERRELEZ HEHRINERE M 96,480 -
Total liabilities BEAH 1,913,374 1,238,571
Total equity and liabilities BERAREE 5,499,041 4,576,515
2016 2015
HKi-g_il_\ﬁE HK:$g_jhE¢
er share per share
BEx | BREr
Net assets per share BREESE 1.291 1.202
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT HRREREREBR
For the X_ear ended 31 December
BEZT-HA=1t-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-hf
HKS'000 HKS 000
B BT
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBBRETFH 908,831 477,534
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMARSFE (291,445) (76,326)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities BMEEEFE/ (A BEFE 3,879 (13,541)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERASSEYRMFR 621,265 387,667
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FEORE RRAEEEY 2,292,287 1,977,677
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents BehkBeZEYIELEE (108,574) (73,057)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZESRALEEY 2,804,978 2,292,287
As at 31 December
N -I-: :-I- .
2016 2015
Bk —2-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000
é)‘%?_l: %ﬁﬁ
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%g%Zﬁ*ﬁ :
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeZEY ) 2,726,733 2,292,287
Cash and cash equivalents included in disposal group STAD R AHHEL & 2 HEARIR
classified as held-for-sale Re kR EEEY M 78,245 =

2,804,978 2,292,287
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2016 (“YEAR 2016"), the consolidated
turnover of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted to HK$1,921.2 million, representing an
increase of 40% when compared with the year ended 31 December 2015
(“YEAR 2015"). Profit for the year totaled HK$312.7 million as compared to a

profit of HK$192.7 million in YEAR 2015.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$5,499.0 million, when compared with HK$4,576.5 million
as at 31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2016, net current assets
amounted to HK$1,424.3 million, when compared with HK$1,533.0 million

as at 31 December 2015.
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& Bl A% 7% 192,700,000 87T °
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H - &&E#%EAS5499,000,0008T MR-Z
—AF+ZA=+—H81%4,576,500,000 %5 T °
RZE—RE+ZA=1+—8 RHEEZFE
£1,424,300,0008 7 MR =T —AF+=H
=+—H8IA1,533,000,000 /8T °

2\ H aN
SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW BRRRDM
. . S 3 2=
(1) Payment processing solutions (1) ATEERRT R
i L b5
Key performance indicators FERRER
2016 2015 Change
—E-RE CZZT—REF g
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)
TER THET
Turnover* SE L 1,050,313 511,178 +105%
EBITDA EBITDA 253,239 99,917 +153%
Operating profit & m A 169,652 60,265 +182%

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$1,050.3 million, as compared to
HK$511.2 million in YEAR 2015. Segmental operating profit amounted to
HK$169.7 million, as compared to HK$60.3 million in YEAR 2015. The
increase in segmental operating profit was mainly due to increased scale of
transaction operations. By end of YEAR 2016, there were over 1,400,000
accumulated domestic merchants and the monthly transaction volume in

December 2016 exceeded RMB76 billion.

* REIBEPZEER

DAL S A1,050,300,00008 0 = F
—HEZEIA511,200,0008 7T ° 9K L%
M A169,700,0008 L —E—AFEEA
60,300,000 70 ° D EELE G EAF E A
RRGEEEERER - E T FEK &
STE AP EIBIB1,400,000F © — T —X4F
T-_RAERSEBARE760ETT °

(2) Financial solutions Q) ERBRER

Key performance indicators TERRIER
2016 2015 Change
—E-AE —Z—1F )
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

THET FHET

Turnover* S 348,079 382,096 -9%
EBITDA EBITDA 26,473 26,814 -1%
Operating profit REH A 14,757 14,256 +4%

* Turnover from external customers

During the current year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$348.1
million, as compared to HK$382.1 million in YEAR 2015. Segmental
operating profit totaled HK$14.8 million, as compared to HK$14.3 million
in YEAR 2015. Effect of decrease in segmental turnover was mitigated by

increased profit margins during the year.

¥ REIBREZEXRE

AEEFERN - D E X% H348,100,000 7%
T M= —HFE A 5382,100,000 %
TL ° DERARE R A H A 14,800,000 7T
M- AFEMAE14,300,00087C c D48
SEEROZYEERFRFBERESMAE
FTRER -
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(3) Electronic power meters and solutions Q) EBEENEERRBRAER
Key performance indicators TERIFIEE

2016 2015 Change
—E-XE —Z—1F #E)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FTRx FET
Turnover* EELh 314,778 209,860 +50%
EBITDA EBITDA 22,744 (10,990) N/A/ N A
Operating profit/(loss) fmERr/ (E8) 18,559 (15,834) N/A/ TNEH

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$314.8 million, 50% up as compared
to 209.9 million in YEAR 2015. Increase in turnover was mainly due to
increased shipment level as compared to YEAR 2015 given the improved
tender results. Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$18.6 million, as
compared to a segmental operating loss of HK$15.8 million in YEAR 2015.
Improved in operating result was mainly attributable to the increase in
segmental turnover and improved profit margin during YEAR 2016.

* REIBEPZEER

o882 ¥ 5 5314,800,00008 T B ZF
—REEEM0% M _E—FFELA
209,900,000 T - B EBEEMF ZARFTIEZ
EENEHNEEER " FT-AEEAMR
= DK ERF A18,600,0008 T MR
“E-RFERADELEEIE 15,800,000
o REREBMUENTERRN_Z—RF
Bz BEEEE MmN RFBEEMRE -

(4) Platform operation solutions ) FEELEMRAR
Key performance indicators TEXRIREIE
2016 2015 Change
—E-RE C—Z-1E g

HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

THERT TET

(restated)

(&Z3)
Turnover* B 208,067 273,712 -24%
EBITDA EBITDA 8,055 35,292 -77%
Operating profit RN 4,732 29,564 -84%

* Turnover from external customers

To promote better efficiency and effectiveness in management, during the
year, we have combined our telecommunication solutions segment and
payment platform solutions segment into the new “Platform operation
solutions segment”. During the year, segmental turnover amounted to
HK$208.1 million as compared to HK$273.7 million in YEAR 2015.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$4.7 million, as compared to
HK$29.6 million in YEAR 2015. The decrease in segmental turnover and
operating profit was mainly contributed by the fact that China Mobile has
established its own Interactive Voice Response (“IVR”) business platform
in YEAR 2015, leading to a reduced demand for the Group's supporting
services and thus decrease in supporting income.

¥ REIBEPZEER

i]

=

ﬁg}

RREAEEHXRYG  ZAERFAKE
ABATRIBERXNFEBRATRDEAS
HReHIFRELBRARTRDE] - FR

DS R 5208,100,0008 T M—_ZE—h
F [ B B273,700,00078 7T © 5 18 & &% 7
54,700,000 L MRZZE—RHFEAA
29,600,000 70 - D EEE 5 KK & % TR
D XEARFEBRHER T -—AFERL
HEEFREHAES([IVR)EKTR @ BRA%EE
ZEERBHFRTE - ZBBARmRD
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OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)Revenue
The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$1,921.2 million, representing
an increase of 40% over YEAR 2015. Such increase was mainly contributed
by increase in segmental turnover of our payment processing solutions
segment. Please also refer to Note (1) to (4) above.

(B) Cost of sales and operating expenses
Increase in cost of sales were primarily due to increase in turnover of the
payment processing solutions segment.

Total operating expenses were comparable to prior year.

(C)Share of results of and gain/(loss) on dilution of interest in an
investment accounted for using the equity method
The Group shares of results of PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX
Global”), an associated company, the shares of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Gain on
dilution of interest in an associated company of HK$0.8 million (YEAR
2015: loss on dilution of interest HK$8.4 million) was due to the effect of
exercise of share options of PAX Global by some of its employees during
the year.

As an ordinary shareholder of Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”),
an associated company of the Group, the Group’s share of loss exceeded
its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, there was no overall financial
impact on the consolidated income statement from the investment for the
current year.

(D)Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land
Balance mainly represents fixed assets of payment processing solutions and
electronic power meters and solutions segments.

(E) Intangible assets
Intangible assets mainly include computer software of HK$8.7 million
allocated to the financial solutions segment and goodwill of HK$1.5 million
upon acquisition of a subsidiary under the platform operation segment.

(F) Investments accounted for using the equity method
Balances mainly represents the Group's interests in PAX Global. As at 31
December 2016, the fair value of the Group’s 32.9% effective interest in
PAX Global was HK$1,871.0 million and the fair value of the investment
was greater than its carrying value.
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On 10 June 2016, Cloopen issued 27,862,642 ordinary shares to an
exising shareholder. Immediately subsequent thereto, Cloopen further
issued 7,443,326 and another 37,216,630 Convertible Series C Preferred
Shares (the “Convertible Series C Preferred Shares”) respectively to a
subsidiary of the Group (Note H) and certain other investors (the “Series C
Transaction”). Upon completion of the Series C Transaction, the Group’s
effective interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on
all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which are held by
the Group, reduced from 67.5% to 47.8%. The Group also ceased to have
joint control over Cloopen, and Cloopen became an associated company
of the Group subsequent to the Series C Transaction. As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s share of loss of Cloopen exceeded its interest in the
ordinary shares of Cloopen, there was no overall financial impact on the
consolidated income statement from the investment for the current year.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group's interest in
the ordinary shares of Cloopen was zero. Meanwhile, the fair value of
the Group's interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was approximately
HK$246.0 million.

(G)Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale financial assets included
equity securities which are unlisted investments outside Hong Kong. As at
31 December 2016, the balance included interest in a venture capital fund
of HK$91.4 million and interest in an unlisted equity investment in the PRC
of HK$14.7 million.

(H)Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss

On 10 June 2016, a subsidiary of the Company subscribed for 7,443,326
Convertible Series C Preferred Shares of Cloopen at a consideration of
US$10 million. As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the Group’s
interest in these Convertible Series C Preferred Shares of Cloopen was
approximately HK$76.9 million.

() Inventories

The amount mainly represents inventories of electronic power meters
and solutions segment. During the year, HK$1.4 million was recorded for
write-back of provision for inventories with respect to slow-moving and
obsolete stocks.

RZE—RF7-H+H " CloopenmEF—%
AR EE1T27,862,642 B i A% © Cloopen
HigBE A% B — B R F#177,443,326
FRCH B AT iR B £ IR([C R 51| AT # IR 1B 5%
BRODBEEH) - WMETHEMREEETS
137,216,630 C % 51| 7] # B 8 5% R (TC &
S5 1) c CRINR G i% - RAEEPR#
Cloopen 2 MR BT RETEIIEBRAE
AEE R Cloopen 2 BR B BIRER A 67.5%
B E47.8% - REE IR BHEA Cloopen 2
HEREHHE - M1 Cloopen B|R CE IR HE K
AREE-—HBE AR c RZT—RF+=A
=+—H  KEERE Cloopen BEBAER
Cloopen & ik « #% - ZIBERENAFEY
RARSERTEREHBYE -

R-ZZE—X"F+-A=+—8 x&£ER
Cloopen LBl 2 ERREEART - A - &
EE RN Cloopenz ERRZEGERFENR
246,000,000 & 7T ©

GQAfHESHEE

RZE—RF+ZA=+—0 A#tHELR
EERREBREAENELTRE 2BRAE
HoMZBE-RNFE+R=+—0 E%BHE
REIZES 7 #2591,400,0008 T K PEIEE
MREAIEE 2 #E25 14,700,000 87T

HEAFEFABZZSHMEE

RZZE—XNFXA+THE  ARa—BHEQR
RHE 7,443,326 Cloopen C R AJ AR & %
B K& &10,000,000%T0° R —X~F
TZA=1+—H"  A&EER Cloopen#%%FC%H
PR B R 2 A F B4 A 76,900,000
BT o
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() Trade and bills receivables, receivables from payment OWEWRAREKREE ARSI EEMR
processing solutions business and other receivables, R RER 2 BWRIE R H & WK
prepayments and deposits H - AARERERE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000

THER TET
Trade receivables (Note (i) (a)) FEMER TR (M 32 (i)(a) 247,647 246,527
Bills receivables (Note (i) (b)) FEWE & (M72 ()(b) 1,284 7,707
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (Note (i) (c) & - BRI REREE (A7 ()(c) (5,397) (18,645)
243,534 235,589
Receivables from payment processing solutions business X5 EEBRFREHZ
(Note (ii)) ﬁé’f\uﬁlmlﬁi(ﬁ/fﬁ’(ﬂ)) - 115,642
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HAhEWIE - AN FIBRES 41,474 44,883
Total At 285,008 396,114
Note (i): Wizt () -
(a) The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180 days. The @ FAEE-RAETEHEBAZEERR0Z180H
ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on invoice date was as follows: A TEREUZAY BUEERRE 20
T
2016 2015
—-~E “Z-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET
Current to 90 days FIEiZ90H 170,730 170,302
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 18,925 7,854
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 23,981 17,248
Over 365 days 365 B E 34,011 51,123
247,647 246,527
— Increase in trade receivables aged between 91 to 180 days and 181 to 365 days — BERNTITZE180BUKR181E365H 2
was mainly due to increase in outstanding balances from electronic power meters YR NE ZMN BT EEm MRS
and solutions segment. ROBAREBEHIEM -
— Decline in trade receivables aged over 365 days was mainly due to settlement — RIRA3GSBULEZEREZIRDTEARE
of outstanding balances by the customers of the electronic power meters and A EERRBAIRNEREEERERE

i

solutions segment.
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(b) Bills receivables belonged to the electronic power meters and solutions segment. b) BN EEZBN B TEERMNMERTRDSE -

(c) Decline in provision for impairment of receivables was mainly due to uncollectible (o) BUFIERERERS T ZMReRBATREN R
receivables written off by financial solutions segment and write-back of provision by LRI B ) R TUIR A R B Bt B B R
electronic power meters and solutions segment. NEDBZEREER -

Note (ii): Rt i) -

This balance mainly represented receivables arising from the payment processing solutions BRESHRTIZERAINRIBERAT RO BEL

segment in Japan. For processing payments on behalf of merchants, the amounts usually IR - RREFPUBMZZHBRBAR  FHLE

become collectible by the Group from the financial institutions once the underlying —RREP 2 AR FEAR SRR BRIR T H AL
transactions of the merchants have been acknowledged by the relevant financial 1) & BB Y ﬁf«éé%ﬁaé?ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ‘%z
institutions. Such amount was re-classified to assets of disposal group classified as held- HEERINERE - F2HMTEM

for-sale. Please refer to Note (M).

(K)Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the (K) FEURFEAT AR E AR Z IR E 2B
equity method

The amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the equity FEY R AR EARZRE ZRIBEERZ
method represent payables from/to PAX Global and Cloopen and its T-RETZA=T—HEK /ENBEERK
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016. Amounts due from/to investments LA K Cloopen R E I B A7), 2 %I  FEUL/fE
accounted for using the equity method are unsecured, interest-free and MU EARIREZFEARERR 28
repayable on demand. RIREREE -

(L) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing DENBRARENRE XNXZEER
solutions business and other payables and accruals RTT R 2 FEAT 7R I H Ath FE A FRIR

X FETH IR
2016 2015

—R"NE —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET

Trade payables (Note (i) (a)) FERBRR (732 (i)(a)) 230,566 165,685

Bills payables (Note (i) (b)) FERSRIR(H732 ()(b)) 35,704 35,538
Payables for payment processing solutions business XNRGEBEARATRERZ

(Note (ii)) FERNTIR (A2 (i) 787,667 472,912

Other payables and accruals (Note (iii)) H o e RIB K FERT SR (AT (1d) 646,400 467,030

Total EHI 1,700,337 1,141,165
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Note (i):

(@) The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. The ageing

analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:
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Mz i) :

(a) EREFRTZEEHHOZI180BTE - 2R

BRERHZENRRIRROTAT |

2016 2015

ZE-RE —T-nF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FEL

Current to 90 days ENEZE 90 H 177,059 104,471
91 to 180 days 91%180H 33,503 24,173
181 to 365 days 181£365H 8,162 21,172
Over 365 days 365 HLAE 11,842 15,869
230,566 165,685

— Increase in trade payables aged between current to 90 days was mainly due to
outstanding balances from electronic power meters and solutions segment and

payment processing solution segment.

— Changes in trade payables aged between 91 to 180 days and 181 to 365 days was
mainly due to outstanding balances from the electronic power meters and solutions

segment.

(b) Bills payables belong to the electronic power meters and solutions segment.
Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing solutions
business. The amounts are generally due for settlement with these customers within
30 days. The increase in balance was mainly due to increased transaction of acquiring
services volume partially net-off by the re-classification of amounts related to disposal

group classified as held-for-sale. Please refer to Note (M).

— RERNTHHE R 2 BAEFEMEZAR
B BEMBBAN RS BEURIANRZE
BRRNRED R AEERER -

— ERNTIIE180BUR181E365A 22
EREZFZ B EEHRN BT EER MR
FEDEREEES -

B (i) -

FRRBERXNZIRERRTREBRNELZ
TR BEESE-RN0BNEZERPETHEE -
BHRIEMDERMRNRERBERZELIMAE - B0
REHBEABFEHEZHEARRBEREAEH -
FAHMFEM)
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Note (iii): et (i) -
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-0%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations’ JE&t & TR RS HR" 162,675 136,817
Deposits and receipt in advance” e RIBEWEGIE" 332,501 148,901
Accrued subcontracting cost &7 BB AR 93,166 102,015
Others Hoh 58,058 79,297
646,400 467,030

The increase in accrued staff costs and pension obligations was mainly due to the

increase in year end bonus as compared to last year.

" The increase in deposits and receipt in advance was mainly due to increase in deposits

M)

and guarantees received from merchants and agents under the payment processing

solutions business.

Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-
sale

During the year, the Company, Merchant Support Co., Ltd (“MS”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and an independent third
party entered into a memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") for
the possible sale of the Group’s entire interests in MS. MS is principally
engaged in the provision of early settlement service for credit card
transactions in Japan (the “Possible Disposal”).

The major classes of assets and liabilities of MS and its subsidiary
classified as held-for sale are as follows:

JER B TR RIRRE SR I B AR FRIEAL
BREFHIEINAE -

© RERBEAREGUEEMEEMR IR S EER

(M)

RAREBAEERREMRM ke R RELE
DFTEL

PEAFFELHECHEARNNEER
afE

£/ ARFE - Merchant Support Co., Ltd
(IMS) - RARARIZZEMBAR) BBVE=
AR E R EBRMSZ BT 5 M ] L i i%
( [FRERE] ) - MSEZRBAREFRMAER
TRGWPHEERT ( [FIREEFE] ) -

MSREMBRANBAREHECBERABTIER
BT

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
TER
Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale DTEARFHECHEARNEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 7,530
Receivables from payment processing solutions business XX P RRIBERR T RE 2 AT IR 133,464
Cash and cash equivalents RehBHeEEY 78,245
Others Hit 3,351
222,590
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale* SRAREHEZHEARNEE~
Payables for payment processing solutions business XX FRIBRRT REN 2 BN FIA 95,915
Others Hith 565
96,480
& Not including the booked amounts of the working capital provided by the * PEEADRMMSREZ 2 EEAREE

Company to MS (the “MS Shareholder’s Loan"). As at 31 December 2016,
MS Shareholder’s Loan indebted to the Company amounted to approximately
JPY1,875.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$124.3 million).

( IMSIEREF] ) e RZE—RE+=
A=+—H8 ' REKXQRAZMSBEEZL
1,875,500,000 5 B (1HE 7 47124,300,000
BIL) o
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KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In connection with the business of provision of payment processing solutions,
the Group from time to time purchases E-payment Terminal products from
PAX Global, an associated company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “PAX
Global Group”).

During the 12-month period preceding 31 January 2016 (“Relevant Period”),
the Group has purchased from PAX Global Group E-payment Terminal
products in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$175.8 million
(inclusive of tax payable by the Group).

The Group provides the E-payment Terminal products to its merchant
customers and in return, the Group imposes a fee. The E-payment Terminal
products the Group procured from PAX Global Group during the Relevant
Period have been recorded as fixed assets while the relevant depreciation
charges have been recorded as cost of sales in the financial statements of the
Group.

During the Relevant Period, relevant members of the Group and of PAX
Global Group from time to time entered into individual agreements setting out
the detailed terms of the sale and purchase of the relevant E-payment Terminal
products.

The prices payable for the E-payment Terminal products was agreed between
the Group and PAX Global Group by reference to the prevailing market
prices of products with similar specifications at the relevant time. The Group
generally settles the purchase price with PAX Global Group every six months.
Please also refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2 February 2016.
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopted contract-
based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual Arrangements”) for the
purpose of enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from
the PRC operating companies (“OPCQO”) in the foreign restricted businesses in
the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which are
material to the Group.

1. EEZTBHEHEERAE (“Just-In Mobile”) and its
subsidiaries: BT X{FER 27 (“SXF”), Hunan Hisun
Mobile Pay IT Ltd CHFE & 5B E M AR A F) (“Hunan
Hisun”) and EESERBESEMER AT (“Fujian
Hisun”)

1.1 Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners

Just-In Mobile is a limited liability company established in the
PRC on 4 June 2002. As at the date of this report, Just-In Mobile
held 80.04% interests in SXF directly, 60% interests in Hunan
Hisun indirectly and 100% interests in Fujian Hisun indirectly.

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile are Mr. Zhou
Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na Wei (40%). Since 28 May 2010, a
contractual arrangement has been made between Just-In Mobile,
the registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile and #1715 8 51l
(L8) BBRAF] (“JIM Shanghai”), which allows JIM Shanghai to
exercise control and enjoy economic benefit generated from Just-
In Mobile.

JIM Shanghai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JIM Holdings
International Company Limited (“JIM Holdings”) which was
acquired by the Company on 19 March 2010 and has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since then.

1.2 Description of OPCO’s business

Just-In Mobile is principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (35{E % {52 %5) with major focus
on payment related solutions and services in the PRC. SXF is
principally engaged in the provision of payment processing
solutions in the PRC. Hunan Hisun and Fujian Hisun are
principally engaged in the provision of platform operation
solutions (including telecommunication solutions and payment
platform solutions) in the PRC.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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1.3

Contractual Arrangement was adopted by the Company in the
above businesses as value-added telecommunication business
(E{EE(ZFT) has been restrictive to foreign direct investment
under the PRC law (being that foreign shareholding must not
exceed 50%).

Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of the
Contractual Arrangements

Management Consulting and Services Agreement

Just-In Mobile and JIM Shanghai entered into the Management
Consulting and Services Agreement, pursuant to which Just-
In Mobile agreed to engage JIM Shanghai as its exclusive
management consultant and service provider. Accordingly, JIM
Shanghai shall provide services to Just-In Mobile on (i) R & D of
the computer software with new and high technology; (i) R & D
of the computer software by other customers’ requirement; (iii)
maintenance of the computer software and technical support; (iv)
R & D and maintenance of the network technique; (v) technical
training; and (vi) provision of staff. Pursuant to the Management
Consulting and Services Agreement, Just-In Mobile would pay
to JIM Shanghai a consulting fee that equals to 95% of Just-In
Mobile’s business income relating to the services provided above
after deducting its operating cost. The consulting fee should
be paid monthly or yearly as requested by JIM Shanghai. The
Management Consulting and Services Agreement shall be effective
from the date of signing for a term of thirty (30) years.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered
into the Cooperative Framework Agreement, pursuant to which
JIM Shanghai has agreed to provide various services, including
management consulting services, to Just-In Mobile. The
Cooperative Framework Agreement shall be effective from the
date of signing for a term of thirty (30) years, unless terminated
by JIM Shanghai. Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na have also undertaken
that in the event JIM Shanghai has to pay any consideration to
them under the Share Option Agreement, they must return to JIM
Shanghai any consideration they receive.

B ANEER 27
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Proxy Agreement

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile (namely Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na) and JIM Shanghai entered into the Proxy Agreement,
pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na agreed to authorise
persons designated by JIM Shanghai to exercise all of their rights
and powers as shareholders of Just-In Mobile. Persons designated
by JIM Shanghai will act on their behalf on all matters pertaining
to Just-In Mobile and, to the extent permissible under applicable
PRC laws and the Articles of Association of Just-In Mobile,
exercise all of their respective rights as shareholders of Just-In
Mobile, including but not limited to the following rights: (i) rights
to attend shareholders’ meetings; (ii) rights to exercise voting
rights in all shareholders’” meeting; (iii) rights to sign on minutes
or resolutions of shareholders” meetings or other legal documents
and (iv) rights to file documents with the relevant companies
registry. The Proxy Agreement shall be effective from the date of
signing for a term of ten (10) years, unless extended by the parties.

Share Option Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and Just-In Mobile entered into
the Share Option Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and
Mr. Na granted to JIM Shanghai and/or any other party designated
by JIM Shanghai irrevocable options to purchase their equity
interests in Just-In Mobile, entirely or partially, at an aggregate
consideration for the entire equity interests which equals to the
total share capital of Just-In Mobile or the value of the equity
and/or assets of Just-In Mobile whichever is lower. However,
the consideration shall not be less than the minimum purchase
price permitted by PRC laws and regulations. The Share Option
Agreement shall be effective for an indefinite term from the date of
the agreement, until it is terminated (i) upon transfer of the entire
equity interests of Just-In Mobile to JIM Shanghai and/or any other
party designated by JIM Shanghai according to the Share Option
Agreement; (ii) due to restraint under the PRC laws that transfer of
the equity of Just-In Mobile in accordance with the Share Option
Agreement is impossible; and (iii) upon JIM Shanghai exercising
the pledge under the Equity Pledge Agreement which results
that the whole equity interests in Just-In Mobile are no longer
held by Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na in full. Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na have
also undertaken that in the event JIM Shanghai has to pay any
consideration to them under the Share Option Agreement, they
must return to JIM Shanghai any consideration they receive.
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Equity Pledge Agreement

Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and JIM Shanghai entered into the Equity
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na
agreed to pledge all of their respective equity interests (together
with their derivative interests) in Just-In Mobile to JIM Shanghai to
secure their payment obligations under the Loan Agreement and
Just-In Mobile’s obligations under the Cooperative Framework
Agreement. Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, if there is
any breach of obligations on the part of Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and/or
Just-In Mobile as prescribed under the Equity Pledge Agreement,
JIM Shanghai shall be entitled to exercise its right of pledge
against the said equity interests. In addition, pursuant to the Equity
Pledge Agreement, each of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na undertook to
JIM Shanghai, among other things, not to transfer, dispose of
their respective equity interests in Just-In Mobile or to create
any encumbrance thereon without JIM Shanghai’s prior written
consent. The Equity Pledge Agreement shall be effective from the
date of the agreement, until two (2) years after completion of all
the obligations on the part of Just-In Mobile under the Cooperative
Framework Agreement.

Loan Agreements

Each of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered into a Loan Agreement
with JIM Shanghai, pursuant to which JIM Shanghai agreed to
lend RMB4,200,000 and RMB2,800,000 to Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na respectively in order to satisfy the funding needs of Just-In
Mobile. Both of the two loans under the two Loan Agreements are
for a term of ten (10) years from the date of signing and can be
extended by mutual consent.

Dispute resolutions

Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, any dispute arising
from the interpretation and implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements between the parties should first be resolved through
negotiation, failing which any party may submit the said dispute
to the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in Shanghai for arbitration in accordance with its
arbitration rules. Arbitrators may award remedies over the shares
or land assets of OPCO, grant order for the conduct of business or
order the winding up of OPCO. The results of the arbitration shall
be final and binding on all relevant parties.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual Arrangements
The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group (including
JIM Holdings, JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, SXF, Hunan Hisun
and Fujian Hisun) for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
HK$1,242.0 million. The consolidated total assets and net
assets of the JIM Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$2,028.5 million and HK$246.6 million respectively.
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Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The board of directors of the Company wishes to emphasize that the
Group relies on the Contractual Arrangements to control and obtain the
economic benefits from Just-In Mobile, i.e. the OPCO, which may not
be as effective in providing operational control as direct ownership. In
addition, if the PRC government finds that the agreements that establish
the structure for operating the value-added telecommunication business
of Just-In Mobile in the PRC do not comply with applicable PRC laws
and regulations, or if these regulations or their interpretations change
in the future, the Group could be subject to severe consequences,
including the nullification of the Contractual Arrangements and
the relinquishment of the Group’s interest therein. The Company
will monitor the relevant PRC laws and regulations relevant to the
Contractual Arrangements and will take all necessary actions to protect
the Company’s interests in the OPCO.

Material change

On 22 January 2016, JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na entered into a new set of underlying contracts of the Contractual
Arrangements with a view to aligning the contents with the latest
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Directors confirm that there is
no major changes to the terms of the underlying contracts.

Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

As at the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any of the
Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind when the restrictions that
led to the adoption of the Contractual Arrangement are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Payment Processing Solutions

Riding on our strength in channels and risk control, the acquiring business
has achieved a healthy development. As at the end of December 2016,
accumulated number of domestic merchants exceeded 1.4 million with
transaction volume reaching RMB76 billion in December 2016. During the
year, the size of acquiring transactions and fee incomes basically maintained
steady growth, while the income attributable to early settlement financial
services business have exceeded 20% of the segmental turnover. On the other
hand, MPOS merchants and innovative QR code payment developed rapidly,
and the QR code payment business has established reputation in the industry
forming in a trend of more diversified business revenue structure and steady
business development. The preparation for license renewal of the payment
business has completed and the renewal is expected to complete successfully
in the middle of the 2017. Following the People’s Bank of China’s approval
of the filling for cross-order RMB payment business during the year, the cross-
border payment commercial business was officially launched, generating a
new source of income while expanding our reach to customers. Smart POS,
whose installation has already embarked in cities such as Beijing, Shanghai
and Shenzhen has not only enhanced the expansion of payment fields and
the scopes of application, but also laid the foundation for subsequent business
layout. Levering the established channels of scale, it is bound to invite good
expectations. Furthermore, upon official implementation of the reform on
transaction fee rates driven by the People’s Bank of China in September
2016, the market expected to usher in favorable development for innovation
business, bringing positive influence to the expansion of high value-added
merchants and quasi-financial business such as wealth management and
financing. As such, we have introduced a number of application solutions. As
one of the leading non-bank payment institutions in the industry, we will set to
continue to gain more space for development.

Financial Solutions

On the basis of strengthening our market position among traditional customers
such as BIG5 (five major banks in China), joint-equity banks and their
overseas branches as well as in areas of core banking systems, we actively
gained breakthrough in city commercial banks as an emerging market. In the
traditional customers markets, in 2016, we have put into operations the core
banking systems of China Guangfa Bank and China Everbright Bank (Seoul),
and won the tenders of core banking systems construction projects for China
Everbright Bank (Luxembourg), China Zheshang Bank (Hong Kong) and China
Bohai Bank (Hong Kong). In the city commercial banks market, we have
successively won the tenders of construction projects for Bank of Suzhou and
Huishang Bank. In the payment and internet financial sectors, we continued
to carry out new projects. Through the core construction of banks as the
means, we have established connections with commercial banks and financial
institutions widely distributed over all cities, laying a solid foundation for
subsequent engagement in the huge FinTech innovation market.
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Electronic Power Meters and Solutions

This round of smart meter reconstruction started by the State Grid in 2009
is near completion. In 2017, the tender proposals of the State Grid for smart
meters and power consumption data collection devices is expected to reduce
to two from three in 2016, and it is expected that the total number of tender
invitations may decline to a certain extent. To construct the next-generation
power consumption data collection system, we expect that the State Grid
will have further in-depth research on technologies and standards such as
the GB standards for construction of IR46 power energy meter, DLT698.45
object-oriented interchangeable data exchange protocol, four-in-one data
collection and broadband power line carrier, and will expand the scope and
scale of pilot areas. In recent years, we have closely followed new technology
development of the State Grid and actively acquired technologies and talents,
believing that we will be the first mover in the new round of meter and data
collection construction by the State Grid.

Platform Operation Solutions

During the year, we have integrated the original telecommunication solutions
and payment platform solutions into platform operation solutions to optimise
our business management. This year the platform solutions business developed
steadily. We continued to provide operational supporting services for the “#ll
8" business, IVR voice conventional businesses and animation business of
China Mobile, and it is expected that incomes from supporting services will
remain stable in the future. China Mobile and the Hunan province government
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement this year to enhance the
support for e-commerce business, entailing that “F1E" business will receive
sound support and continue its rapid development. In the future, we will
continue to maintain the steady development of our operational support
business while actively exploring new business opportunities in related
areas, such as cooperation with operators surrounding areas of operation and
development of new business cooperation opportunities such as e-coupons.
In addition, we will leverage the advantage in product technology business in
the area of payment to expand new customers as well as exporting our mature
products and technical services to build new business development modes
apart from traditional support business, further maintaining long-term stable
and healthy development.

Principal Risk and Uncertainty

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from a small
number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good relationships with
these customers could materially and adversely affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes in market
conditions, technological advancements, developing industry standards and
changing customers’ needs and preferences for our new products and/or
services. If we are unable to respond to these changes promptly or unable to
continually enhance our existing products and launch market new products
in a timely manner, our performance may be adversely affected. Also, any
unauthorised use of our intellectual property by third parties could harm our
business and competitive position.
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The industries we operate in the PRC are subject to extensive industry
standards and government regulations. If we fail to comply with these
standards and regulations, our operation and sales may be adversely affected.
Regarding our payment processing solutions business in the PRC, we are
currently operating under three payment licenses, including national bank
card acceptance, online payment and mobile payment licenses, which will
expire in June 2017. Any failure to renew these payment licenses could
disrupt our business operations and our sales may be materially and adversely
affected.

The Group has been operating certain lines of businesses which adopted
contract-based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual Arrangements”)
for the purpose of enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and
benefit from the PRC operating companies (“OPCQO”) in the foreign restricted
businesses in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition, there can be no
assurance that the PRC government authority would continue to deem these
Contractual Arrangements to be in compliance with the applicable PRC laws
and regulations, or that the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted
in the future would not affect the Contractual Arrangements. Details of the
Contractual Arrangements are set out in section headed “Information on the
Contractual Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 26.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s shares
investments. The Company is also subject to market risk, such as currency
fluctuations, and volatility of interest rates, credit risk, and liquidity risk
in the normal course of the Group’s business. Particulars of financial risk
management of the Company are set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its businesses and
the communities with which it engages. We pursue this business approach by
managing our business prudently and executing management decisions with
due care and attention.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has complied with the applicable laws and regulations such as the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and other applicable
local laws and regulations in various jurisdictions.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to prevailing
market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance and performance related bonus. Share
options may also be granted to eligible employees of the Group.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully understands this
principle and thus maintains close relationship with the customers to fulfil
their immediate and long-term need. Due to the nature of the business, the
Group did not have any major supplier that has significant influence on its
operations.

However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operating relationship with
the suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

XU Sitao (ceased on 26 February 2016)

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard (re-designated on 26 February 2016)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), not less than
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung, Mr. Xu Changjun and Mr. Xu Wensheng, Executive
Directors of the Company, will retire at the forthcoming 2017 annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within 1 year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity (as defined
under Listing Rules) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management are set
out on pages 4 to 6.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers of
the Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and
officers liability insurance cover for the Directors and officers of the Group
to indemnify against losses or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from
or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices, subject to terms and
conditions set out in the policy.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of each Director
and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company
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Number of shares held

FROHE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding**
Personal interest  Corporate interest Total RAEZBEH
Name of Director Y AR NEER mey B **
Kui Man Chun REE 28,650,000(L)* 617,083,636(L)* 645,733,636 23.25%
(note () (i)

Xu Wensheng (¢ 4,566,000(L)* - 4,566,000 0.16%
Li Wenjin FXE 6,400,000(L)* - 6,400,000 0.23%
Xu Changjun "hEE 16,563,000(L)* - 16,563,000 0.60%

Note: i

(i) These shares were held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a company which
Mr. Kui Man Chun held a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

¥ The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares

** The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2016, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, the
Chief Executive of the Company nor their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(i) ZEBRMBEEEFLEEBHI Sun Limited CREEFR
HEF5H99.16% % 2 A7) e Hi Sun Limited 2 24
Bt B2 B Rich Global Limited #74 o

* TLRTBRDTREE

* oW DRERARBAR-_E—~"EF+-_A=+—8B2
DEITRINEE12,776,833,835 L@ HE -

BREXPBEEIN RZE-RE+_A=1+—
B REZ ARATRARIREZHBEAL
(E&ER EMRABER AR R HEREEE (E
EREZFLAEGRPIEXVE) 2B - HERND
FEFTHEACTARRRREE 7 L& 5HIH
352 {fIF B 2 B RBIRETRE REAT A
HEADBRBR R IIAR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders (other than a Director, or the Chief Executive) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder

e
Rich Global Limited (“RGL")***

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”)*** (Note 1)
(Higt1)

Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 2)
REFLEWH2)
Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”)

Mr. Che Fung (Note 3)
BIESLE(HEE3)

Notes:

T Representing HSL's interests in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its control of
100% shareholding in RGL.

2 Representing Mr. Kui Man Chun’s (i) deemed interests in the Company’s share capital
by virtue of his control of 99.16% shareholding of HSL; and (ii) personal interests in the

Company's share capital as disclosed in the preceding section.

3 Representing Mr. Che Fung's interests in the Company’s share capital by virtue of his

control of 100% shareholding in Ever Union.
¥ The Letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares.

** The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2016, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

#** Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui Man Chun, Mr.
Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng were directors of HSL which were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding**

EERYE REZBONEIH

617,083,636(L)* 22.22%
617,083,636(L)* 22.22%
645,733,636(L)* 23.25%
334,314,000(L)* 12.04%
334,314,000(L)* 12.04%

i
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, there were no other party,
other than a Director or the Chief Executive of the Company, who had any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions which constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are outlined below. The Group has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
such transactions.

Framework agreement with Ronglian Yitong

On 9 May 2016, the Company entered into a framework agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”) with Beijing Ronglian Yitong Information
Technology Co. Ltd. (“Ronglian Yitong”"), pursuant to the which the Group
agreed to engage and Ronglian Yitong agreed to provide or procure the
provision of , on a non-exclusive basis, technical and support services in
relation to platform operation and such other technical support services that
may be agreed between the Group and Ronglian Yitong and its subsidiaries
from time to time and/or their respective members for a term commencing
from the date of the Framework Agreement to 31 December 2018.

Mr. Zhang Hui (the “Mr Zhang”), who is a director of two of the subsidiaries
of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, is one of the registered
shareholders of Ronglian Yitong holding 45.8% shareholding in Ronglian
Yitong. Therefore, Ronglian Yitong, being an associate of Mr. Zhang, is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”).

Since Ronglian Yitong is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level and the Continuing Connected Transactions are on normal commercial
terms or better, the Continuing Connected Transactions are exempt from
the circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules and will only be
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The cap on the total contract value for the sale and purchase of services
under the Framework Agreement for the period from its commencement until
the end of 2016 and the years ending 2017 and 2018 are RMB60,000,000,
RMB66,000,000 and RMB69,000,000 respectively and the actual total
transaction amount for the said period ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB47,701,270.

Please also refer to an announcement (“CCT Announcement”) of the Company
dated 9 May 2016 and note 33 to the condensed consolidated financial
statements.
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During the year, the Board and the finance department of the Company
have followed through and collected data on the Continuing Connected
Transactions by adopting the following procedures which have been reviewed
by the audit committee of the Board:

(1) periodic checks on the pricing terms to ensure they are compliant with the
Framework Agreement; and

(2) periodic reports on total transaction amounts to ensure the annual caps
were not exceeded.

The independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed the above
internal control measures taken by the management and are of the view that
such internal control measures are adequate and effective to ensure that the
Continuing Connected Transactions entered into during the year were on
normal commercial terms and compliant with the pricing policies stipulated
under the Framework Agreement. The INEDs have further opined that the
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;
(ii) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules and a copy of this letter has been provided to the Stock
Exchange.

OTHER TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR

On 13 September 2016, the Company, Merchant Support Co., Ltd (“MS”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and an independent third party
entered into a memorandum of understanding for the possible sale of the
Group's entire interests in MS. MS is principally engaged in the provision of
early settlement service for credit card transactions in Japan. Please also refer
to announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, total cost of purchase of electronic funds transfer point-
of-sale (“EFT-POS”) terminals from PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX
Global”) amounted to approximately HK$134.9 million, and was regarded as
capital in nature. The Company held 32.9% interest in PAX Global and Mr. Li
Wenjin, an Executive Director of the Company and also an Executive Director
of PAX Global, was interested in 2,890,000 shares issued by PAX Global (the
underlying shares of which represented approximately 0.26% of the issued
share capital of PAX Global) as at 31 December 2016.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest suppliers of
items which are not of capital nature was less than 30% of the total purchases
of the Group for the year.

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s major
customers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 10%
— five largest customers combined 26%

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had interests in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme of the Group or the Company set
up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485). Under the scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to
a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the Group
is required to contribute an amount in favour of the employees in the PRC
an amount of approximately 7% to 20% of their yearly wages to certain
retirement benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in any business constituting a competing
business to the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained at all times during the year sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in ensuring
effective leadership and control of the Company, transparency and
accountability of all operations and that its business is conducted in
accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
the Group's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying
and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the Group's
needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
(the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

In formulating its corporate governance practices and standards, the Company
has applied the Principles and complied with all applicable Code Provisions
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted trading guidelines regulating directors’ transactions
concerning securities of the Company, on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in
Model Code and the Group's trading guidelines throughout the year.

The Company has also established written trading guidelines for employees
in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities, who, because of
their offices or employment, come to or are likely to come to possess inside
information in relation to the Group or securities of the Company, with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make decisions objectively in
the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its power for decisions concerning major matters of the
Company which include the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict
of interests of Director(s) or substantial shareholders), appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers and
relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as to the senior
management’s powers, the scope of delegations and relevant arrangements
are periodically reviewed to ensure they remain appropriate to the Company’s
needs. Reporting to and prior approval of the Board are necessary before
the senior management enters into any material transactions and assuming
significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive Directors
and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The balanced composition of
executive and independent non-executive members upholds the effective
exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Xu Sitao (ceased on 26 February 2016)

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (re-designated from an Non-Executive
Director to an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2016)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time and an updated list of all directors identifying their role and
function is maintained on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship among
the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

Code Provision A.4.1 of CG Code stipulates that Non-Executive Director
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The Independent
Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed contract term subject to re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election.

Code Provision A.4.3 of CG Code stipulates that serving more than 9 years
could be relevant to the determination of the independence of an Independent
Non-Executive Director. If an Independent Non-Executive Director has served
for more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under applicable laws, rules and regulations, and the Group's
governance and internal control policies. Besides, the Company will arrange
and fund suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of its Directors.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has arranged and funded in-house trainings for the Directors in the form of
seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training received by
the Directors during the relevant period according to the records provided by
the Directors is as follows:
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BRREZABENE ARAEEBRRIMTE
RAEEREFINER - REELHRIE - M
ERMARENN - REEFRHZCH EFN
HEHEES ZEHENT

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

TEER EERER
Name of Directors Y H it AHBE E L
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Cheung Yuk Fung REE V
Kui Man Chun RBER \
Xu Wensheng hxa& V
Li Wenjin ENE v
Xu Changjun HhEE V
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUFHITEE -
Tam Chun Fai EiRE V
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER v
Xu Sitao (ceased on 26 February 2016) FRERZZ-—REF_AZTREEE) N/A TNE
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (re-designated on Rki&/F (R T —XFE A -+ XAEREIT) V

26 February 2016)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors in
the Board members’ selection process, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period, the Company has a solid slate of Directors
with diverse perspectives and varied educational background and expertise
made-up, from extensive knowledge of the information technology industry
and electronic payment industry, experience in international trade, finance
and corporate management, to professional qualifications in the legal and
accounting fields. Each Director had accumulated experience in his respective
field of expertise for at least 20 years, all of whom are anchored by the
common trait of having a natural aptitude and singular drive for the industry
so as to bring sustainable growth to the Company.

ESEXESTIBE

EZECRMEFEXBETLILREK - ARFES
REFEXERERRTFERZHEAE - BRET
RS - Fe - ERHAEER Bk FEL
B RBE MARRBEY  BREFEFEKRE
STl - MEEEERBZETERBARES - M
REMERESEXNELLL BERREAZE
BRIGAT -

RWEHE - ARAHEAEFHZTRE R TRAH
EESMBEXABCES  REHFAEMBHIT
EREFINTEZEZAZ  BRES 28
REEERER  UEREZRREFEB2EX
BR -EEUREABXEBRBEL20FK
B WEBRET B REBTERA KRS
g RAREWRSEER -
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four Regular Board meetings were held during the year for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance and respectively the
final results for the year ended 31 December 2015, quarterly results for
the three months ended 31 March 2016, interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2016 and for the nine months ended 30 September 2016, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board held from
time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of the Board in compliance
with the CG Code), Audit Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting, Risk Management Committee
Meetings and general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out below:
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EEZSeBRESHERR
FRAGRTHAEREFTEEH - UBHRIE
BBLEERR D ERE_T-RF+
A=T—RLFEZ2FEE BE-_ZT—KX
FZA=T-RAL=ZERAZFERE BE_-F
—ANEANA=ZTBREANEAZHHEERBEE
Z-RNFAA=ZTHLENBEARE UAREER
BEEA DB BRI MR -

REERBE_Z—"FT-_A=+—RLFEH
FHARRFEESZECE(TEBAELMTRET
I EHEFEREMRBLEE RATRIZEME
HEEENEEE) BRLZESER REZEB
SR FHZEeem EREEZESER

BRAE ZERICEEIIMT -

Attendance/Number of meetings

L Ve
Audit ~ Nomination ~Remuneration Risk Management Regular Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
ENZEE REZEE FHZEE EREE ER R
Name of Directors BEpns g3 Ef EE ZE2EE Ezeed BEAE
Cheung Yuk Fung REE N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 17
TER Tam TER TER
Kui Man Chun REE N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 n
TER Tam TER @R
Xu Wensheng s N/A N/A N/A 33 3/4 171
TER Tam TER
Li Wenjin FNE N/A I mn 313 4/4 I
TER Tam TER
Xu Changjun REE N/A N/A N/A 33 4/4 17
TER Tam TER
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard &% 22 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 7
TER TEm TEH
Tam Chun Fai Bl 2 n n N/A 4/4 n
TEH
Leung Wai Man, Roger 28 2/2 I I N/A 4/4 I
TEH
Xu Sitao fHEE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER Tam TER @R TEM @R
(Ceased on 26/2/16) (RZE—RE

“R=tRBEE)

TR BR L AARRZ R BRI A R R DR
ENREREEZREME UFAARAEEL
— RRBE_FRF+-A=t-RALFEH

N
FBT=REREEZE€E -

Note: Not being one of the Directors of the Company, Ms. Hui Lok Yan is the Group i
Financial Controller, Joint Company Secretary and the member of Risk Management
Committee of the Company. She attended three Risk Management Committee

meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days
before the intended date of meetings. Reasonable notice is, as permitted
under relevant circumstances or otherwise agreed, given for other Board and
committee meetings.

The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been responsible
for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking into account any matters
the Directors proposed to include, ensuring that all Directors are given
opportunity to include matters in the agenda and approving the agenda.
In order to enable the Directors to make informed decision, agenda and
accompanying board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and/or financial position of the Company. Such board papers
and related materials must be in reasonably satisfactory quality to serve their
purpose. The Board and the individual Directors would also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further enquires or
when they require further information, in addition to those volunteered by the
senior management above, to properly fulfill his duties whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to
advise on business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to prepare and keep the minutes of
all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes records sufficient
details of matters considered, decision reached, concerns raised and, if any,
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated
to the Directors for comment and record within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting,
at which independent non-executive Directors having no material interest in
the transaction should be present along with other Directors. The Company’s
Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the
Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice and established corporate governance procedures. With the support
of the Company Secretary and the senior management, the Chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively participate in
the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best interests of the Company.
The Chairman also promotes a culture to facilitate effective contributions and
encourage the Directors to express dissenting views and concerns and allow
sufficient discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The role of the Chief Executive focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive
is also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, monitoring control systems and internal procedures
and processes for the Board's approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation in board
meetings, and offer independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts on interests
arise, serving on the various Board committees, examining the Company’s
performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives and monitoring
performance reporting, the independent non-executive Directors has become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.

During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have also attended
the annual general meeting(s) of the Company, details of which are set out in
page 46, enabling them to obtain more balanced understanding of the views
of the shareholders.
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During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, with at least one Independent
Non-Executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. In compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, Independent Non-Executive Directors
represented at least one-third of the Board throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.

Confirmation of independence of Independent Non-Executive

Directors

In respect of the reporting period, the Company received from the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Fai, Mr. Leung
Wai Man, Roger and Mr. Xu Sitao (resigned on 26 February 2016), written
annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to the requirements
of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, which confirmed to the Company that
each of them met the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

In particular, in furtherance to the announcement of the Company dated
26 February 2016, Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (“Mr. Chang”), who has
served as a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2009, has been
re-designated as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 26 February 2016. During his tenure as a Non-Executive
Director, Mr. Chang had served in areas including management’s performance
monitoring, risk assessment and internal controls and was not involved in the
day-to-day management and operations or executive or management role or
functions in the Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries or
core connected persons of the Company.

Accordingly, it is considered that Mr.Chang has satisfied the independence
criteria in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, apart from Rule 3.13(7) in respect of
the technicality in his past appointment as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company which did not in substance affect his independence to serve as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, and the Company has
received a written confirmation from Mr. Chang confirming his independence
as such.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Risk Management
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees are established with defined written terms of reference,
setting out its authority and duties, requiring them to report back to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations (unless restricted by regulatory
requirements). The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s website and hard copies of which
are available to Shareholders upon request.
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The majority of the members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
Executive Directors except the Risk Management Committee and the list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee as at the date of this report
is set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Chang Kai Tzung, Richard*

Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)*

Xu Wensheng®

Li Wenjin®

Hui Lok Yan*

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties and, upon reasonable and timely request, are able to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

* Not being one of the Directors of the Company, Ms. Hui Lok Yan is the Group Financial

Controller and Joint Company Secretary of the Company.
*  Independent Non-Executive Director

4 Executive Director
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-Executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

During the Reporting Year, the main duties of the Audit Committee include
the following:

(a) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work they performed, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system, risk management system and
associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk Management
Committee has access to information necessary to fulfil their duties and
responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2016 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, internal control system and risk management
systems, effectiveness of internal audit function of the Group, the auditor’s
independence and objectivity. The Audit Committee has also recommended
the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external
auditors and approved their remuneration and terms of engagement and the
Board confirms that it has taken no different view from the Audit Committee in
relation to the recommended re-appointment.

As at the end of 2016 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

—B-AEEH 51

Corporate Governance Report

B RWAN

EREES
ENZBeH-2BUFNTESEN  ETEHE
—HARABEEREEL ST IEMMBEEER
MBZBULFHTES - BERREG2BKEBHE
ARABEINEZEEI A EBA

REEEE  BRZ

il

)3

S TERAEBE

il

) BMHBRRRRE  LREREEEN - 2
BARREHARIERBM R 2 FAEA
SRBREEE ;

b 2ZHERBMAETIE BEREBERK
FoOmEARRRERE IRRE BRER
ReINEREMAEESRHER

(€ BHARTMBHEHE - AEPEZHE - A
REENENEEEFRERD RAENE
K

EEBERZESAE BREARERZES
ERLRES  UWETEBERTEERRE
BYEENER -

BERZBENEE_T—R"Ft-A=1t—HLF
EERRTMAEH BHAKEMBEEERRS
HERERTERF - MBS KR E 2
g AEEZBENANEE - ZEE B R
EEI - ERZ BN EZENRERRAKE
SETEDEH AR EARE S A BRI AL B A L
MEZEFH MEFSCRIHLNERENZRE
FHERGZEGUEI I -

R-E-ANERERARERS  HEFENEY
ARARBRERNELEARAZEHRBERZ
BATHPREE -

AARBE-T—AF+-ASt—AILEES
FRECMAEREAREN -



52 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report

AEEF WY

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided under the
terms of reference adopted in compliance with the requirements under
the CG Code, include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to the balance
of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the requirements of the business of the
Group and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Cheung
Yuk Fung, Mr. Xu Changjun and Mr. Xu Wensheng, Executive Directors of the
Company, will retire at the forthcoming 2017 annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Nomination Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the
said Directors standing for re-election to the Board, following which the
Board, after due consideration, has recommended their re-appointment for
the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company’s circular dated 21 March 2017 contains detailed information
of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee were set
out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with the requirements
under the CG Code, which include making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of
the Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, whose
remuneration will be determined with reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the remuneration
policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration packages
of the Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Human Resources Department is responsible for collection and administration
of the human resources data and making recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Board about these recommendations. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 December 2016 to
review and recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the company, to establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy for the remuneration of the Directors, assessing
performance of the executive directors and approving the terms of their
respective service contracts.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration payable to the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:
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Number of
individuals
Remuneration band M 48 B AE
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 07702 1,000,000 7% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T E 2,000,000 7 7T 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 % 7TZE 3,000,000 78 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in note 9 and note 35 to the consolidate financial statements.

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee comprises a minimum of four members and
shall have at least three Directors.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the following:

(a) to review the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls) and internal
audit function, to ensure that effective and adequate risk management and
internal control systems are established and maintained and that sufficient
resources are in place for the Group’s internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making processes
in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain the Group’s risk
management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk
management systems and internal control systems (including financial,
operational and compliance controls) for the Group and adequacy of
resources of its internal audit functions.
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The Risk Managements Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Company, including (i) to develop and review the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and the senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employee and Directors and (v) to review the Group’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and complying with other financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 59 to 68.

Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient explanation
and necessary information enabling the Board to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospectus in sufficient detail.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk assessment
and management systems and has overall responsibility for reviewing and
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the
Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually to ensure
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate risks, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
We have employed a bottom-up approach for identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep track of and
document identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of risks, the
development and continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company for
indentifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the achievements of
its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M
= medium risk, H = high risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and
the impact of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements
attention and risk treatment effort required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk owner of departments
and major subsidiaries are required to capture and identify the key inherent
risks that affect the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is
evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the risk
response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual
risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems
and report to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems and to resolve material internal

control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, and in order to
adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting periodic reviews of the
Company’s internal controls, the internal control department of the Company
has been designed by the Board to work with an independent consulting firm
(the “Internal Control Auditor”) to execute the internal audit function. The
Internal Control Auditor has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the period from
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 in accordance with the requirements under
Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed
and approved by the Risk Management Committee.

The Internal Control Auditor reported to the Risk Management Committee and
the Risk Management Committee was satisfied that there had been no major
deficiency noted in the areas of the Group's risk management and internal
controls systems being reviewed after implementation of recommendations of
the internal control defects reported by the Internal Control Auditor. The Audit
Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures and cooperates with the Risk Management Committee
to ensure the Risk Management Committee has access to information
necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk
assessment and risk management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered during the year, the risk management and internal control
systems to be effective and have been implemented with adequate resources
during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information

The Board has already established a policy on the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The policy
stipulated the duty and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure, exemption and wavier to the disclosure
of inside information, and also compliance and reporting procedures. Every
senior management of the Company must take all reasonable measures
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Company from time to time. They must promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information to the attention
of the Chief Financial Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking
the appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of this policy, the
Board will decide, or designate appropriate persons to decide the course of
actions for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in respect of
audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$3,500,000.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(@) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s)" holding, as at the date of deposit of the requisition for a
special general meeting, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies)
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
or not less than 100 Shareholders may, at their expense, provide a written
request to the attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put forward
proposals at general meeting.

(c) Communication with shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. At the annual general meeting held
on 22 April 2016 (the “2016 Annual General Meeting”), the Directors were
made available to answer questions in accordance with the requirements
under the CG Code. The Company’s external auditor also attended the
2016 Annual General Meeting to answer any questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and their independence.

Notices for the 2016 Annual General Meeting was sent in accordance
with the requirements under the CG Code. Separate issues were proposed
as separate resolution for approval by the shareholders at the general
meetings, to avoid “bundling” resolutions and shareholders were provided
of explanation of the detailed procedures for voting by poll and given
sufficient changes to raise questions in relation thereto.
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Other Communications H @

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and ARBENMEREREE ZBBRAR - 58
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management maintains SEEBASEBBREZERD T EREH
an open dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them g YUHEREARARMER -

abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk, where AR AIREAB 485 www.hisun.com.hk + FE A
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial RAEBERREE  HHERNKEE &M
information and news can always be found. BH o

Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to direct their BRRMABE R A NEERMKRERTE@R
written enquires. Al -

Constitutional Documents ERXH

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents REEARAZ BRI EES -

during the year.

On behalf of the Board REREZS
Cheung Yuk Fung FE
Chairman REIg

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017 Bt _T—tF=ANH
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To the Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 179,
which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of receivables
J Impairment of inventories
o Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of receivables

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 22
(trade and bills receivables, receivables from payment processing solutions
business and other receivables, prepayments and deposits) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2016, gross trade receivables of the Group amounted to
HK$247.6 million, which accounted for approximately 5% of the Group's
total assets. The provision for impairment of trade receivables amounted to
HK$5.4 million, all of which was attributable to customers located in China.

Management performed periodic credit monitoring, which included the
review of customers’ credit worthiness, collection of outstanding balances and
individual credit terms. If there is indicator that the receivables are impaired,
management would make specific provision against individual balances with
reference to the recoverable amount.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and the
estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the recoverable
amounts of trade receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on recoverability
of trade receivables included:

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures on periodic review on aged
receivables and assessment on recoverability of these receivables;

—  Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on trade
receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices; and

- Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances. Where
settlement had not been received subsequent to the year end for those
unprovided aged receivables beyond the credit period as at year end,
we obtained management’s assessment on the recoverability of these
debts and corroborated explanations with historical settlement pattern
and underlying correspondence with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the collectability of receivables were supportable by
the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
Impairment of inventories

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note
21 (inventories) to the consolidated financial statements for the related
disclosures.

The Group held inventories of HK$75.0 million as at 31 December 2016.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV”).
The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged
and damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has written back
provision for inventories of HK$1.4 million.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of inventories by
considering the ageing profile, inventory obsolescence and estimated selling
price of individual inventory items.

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based on the estimated
selling price less selling expenses, which requires significant judgements and
assumptions to be made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling products of similar nature
and expectation of future sales based on current market conditions.

Management consistently applies a provisioning methodology for slow moving
inventories based on inventory ageing and makes specific provision for long
aged inventories. Management also conducted periodic review on inventory
obsolescence, including performance of periodic inventory counts and review
of holding period for individual inventory items.

We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision for inventories
involves significant judgement and various uncertainties as a result of
changing technology, customer demand and competitors actions.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on NRV and
obsolescence of inventories included:

- Understood and validated the control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV of the
inventories and conducting periodic review on inventory obsolescence;

- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether there is any
damaged or obsolete inventory;

-  Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of
individual inventory items by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices;

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of significant inventory
items, obtained through the usage report subsequent to the year end as a
basis to identify inventory obsolescence. Where there are no subsequent
usage of the respective items after the year end, we discussed with
management its assessment on estimated future utilisation, corroborating
explanations with the inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability
of the relevant finished goods by using our industry knowledge and
external market analysis, as appropriate; and

- Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items, by
comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end, against the
carrying values of these individual finished goods. Where there are no
subsequent sales of the respective finished goods after the year end, we
discussed with management as to the realisable value of the products,
corroborating explanations with the inventory ageing, sales orders,
historical margins, and current market conditions by using our industry
knowledge and external market analysis, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations of management
in relation to the provision for inventories were supportable by available
evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

Refer to Note 3.3 (fair value estimation), Note 4 (critical accounting estimates
and judgement), Note 17 (available-for-sale financial assets) and Note 18
(financial asset at fair value through profit or loss) to the consolidated financial
statements for related disclosure.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held interest in (i) an unlisted investment
fund of HK$91.4 million and (ii) certain unlisted convertible preference shares
of HK$76.9 million; which have been classified as available-for-sale financial
asset and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss respectively.

These unlisted financial instruments are stated at their fair values, classified
under level three in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was determined by applying a
portfolio discount to the audited net asset value of the unlisted investment fund
as at 31 December 2016, which had already taken into account the fair values
of the fund’s underlying investments. The discount rate was determined based
upon the relative shareholding and rights of the Group and the marketability
of the investment.

The Group engaged an independent external valuer in determining the fair
value of the unlisted financial asset at fair value through profit or loss by using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions used in the valuation
include pre-tax discount rate, compound annual growth rate and terminal
growth rate.

We focused on this area because the carrying amounts of these financial
instruments are significant to the consolidated financial statements and
selection of valuation methodologies and determination of key valuation
assumptions requires the use of significant judgement and estimates.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination of the fair value of
these financial instruments included:

For the unlisted investment fund:

- We tested the accuracy of the net asset value of the unlisted investment
fund by checking to its audited financial statements; and

-  We also involved our internal valuation expert in our discussion with
the management to understand the rationale for applying the portfolio
discount, reviewed relevant agreements or documents to understand
the key terms of the subject interest and assessed the appropriateness of
portfolio discount by referencing to relevant research studies and market
practices on various discounts commonly considered in valuations.

For the unlisted convertible preference shares:

- We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer by considering its qualifications, relevant
experience and relationship with the Group;

- We also involved our internal valuation expert in our discussion
with the external valuer to understand the rationale, and assess the
appropriateness and the consistency, of the methodologies used and the
key assumptions and estimates applied;

- We also assessed the reasonableness of the input data used by
evaluating:

J the pre-tax discount rate by considering the weighted average cost
of capital and the risk profile of the investee; and

e the appropriateness of the compound annual growth rate and
the terminal growth rate based on market research, historical
performance and the business plan of the investee.

- We also compared the fair value of the unlisted convertible preference
shares with recent transaction price.

Based on the procedures described, we found the methodologies used and key
assumptions applied in the valuations to be reasonable and supportable by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement

Rl B

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RFE ZE—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FET
Revenue WA 5,6 1,921,237 1,376,846
Cost of sales SHER R 7 (1,328,542) (899,262)
Gross profit E7 592,695 477,584
Other income Halg A 5 46,205 47,249
Other loss HiEE 5 (1,120) -
Selling expenses HERX 7 (101,631) (134,839)
Administrative expenses THEM 7 (403,826) (383,501)
Operating profit REHN 132,323 6,493
Share of results of investments accounted for AR EARZINEEE
using the equity method 20 198,992 198,218
Gain/(loss) on dilution of NEREAR —BIRE
interest in an investment accounted for Bz BB (BE)
using the equity method 20 826 (8,442)
Profit before income tax MRET BB AR R 332,141 196,269
Income tax expense TSRS 10 (19,485) (3,577)
Profit for the year FEREF 312,656 192,692
Profit attributable to: SR
— Equity holders of the Company —AREEEFHAA 283,964 183,486
— Non-controlling interests — IR 28,692 9,206
312,656 192,692
HK$ per HKS$ per
share share
BRERT BRET
Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity A2 AEFIFE AEGEER 2
holders of the Company: BREA :
Basic A 12 0.102 0.066
Diluted B 12 0.100 0.064

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ F76 £ 179 BZMENREHMBHRE ZEFREHH ©

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

L € F S

For the year
ended 31 December
BEt-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-Rf CZT-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TET
Profit for the year FREF 312,656 192,692
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax Hit2E(FE) /W (NREE)
Items that have been reclassified or may be subsequently EENSPERAEETRENIE
reclassified to profit or loss EE#HZER
Exchange differences arising on translation of the BEBIINBRAMBHRREE
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ZERERE (47,920) (38,507)
Share of other comprehensive loss of AR EANR ZIRE
investments accounted for using the equity method Z Bt EHEEE
— exchange differences arising on translation of the financial ~ —#2Z /NI E R A B B R EE
statements of foreign subsidiaries ZIERERE (41,132) (36,477)
Release of reserves upon dilution of interest in an investment B LAEZE AR 2 IR AR
accounted for using equity method B2
— exchange differences arising on translation of the financial ~ — &GN & A 781 75 3R &=
statements of foreign subsidiaries EHZERER 116 (88)
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation of available-for-sale BEAHEESREEL
financial assets NFERE (BE) 22,755 (21)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FREEWZLEGIRTE) 246,475 117,599
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FEEHREEE :
— Equity holders of the Company —RRRIEERAA 221,140 110,305
— Non-controlling interests — JEIER R 25,335 7,294
246,475 117,599

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated %76 %179 B 2t N4 AMBHREZEH LS o
financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

i B R RLER

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-H
2016 2015
“E-RE CZ—ZT—1F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt THERT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 13 2,054 1,889
Property, plant and equipment MmE - BB K& 14 267,114 214,234
Leasehold land MELi 15 32,215 33,785
Intangible assets BVEE 16 10,466 18,855
Investments accounted for using the equity method ARz AR 2 1% & 20 1,663,250 1,525,040
Available-for-sale financial assets N ECREE 17 106,113 6,982
Financial asset at fair value through profitor loss AT EN AB@RZ ERMAE 18 76,880 -
Long-term deposits and prepayments RERe RENFIE 22 3,434 4,318
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 2,161,526 1,805,103
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 74,972 53,113
Trade and bills receivables FEUER 0 e FE U R B 22 243,534 235,589
Receivables from payment processing INRGBEBBRFRER
solutions business Z TR SRR 22 - 115,642
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HipeloE - AN RE RS 22 38,040 40,565
Amounts due from investments accounted for JEW AR EAN R R E
using the equity method ZHA 33 13,258 10,761
Short-term bank deposits KRHIRITE 23 18,388 23,455
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBReEEY 24 2,726,733 2,292,287
3,114,925 2,771,412
Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale D ARFIEHE 2 HEBRINEE 32 222,590 -
Total current assets RBEEMLE 3,337,515 2,771,412
Total assets BEEH#E 5,499,041 4,576,515
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to equity FATRERFEARERE
holders of the Company K%
Share capital (&N 25 6,942 6,942
Reserves i 26 3,524,274 3,301,886
3,531,216 3,308,828
Non-controlling interests FEPER £ 54,451 29,116
Total equity ERAHE 3,585,667 3,337,944

F76 2179 BZMEADRAMBEHRRZEF LD -

ok

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

mEEEAMRE)

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-H
2016 2015
“E-RE CZ—ZT—1F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt THER FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEHEE 28 205 132
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBREE 205 132
Current liabilities poEIR=R
Trade and bills payables e R N R iR 27 266,270 201,223
Payables for payment processing solutions business XX ZREBHA T REBK 2 ENFTE 27 787,667 472,912
Other payables and accruals Hoh FE AT RRE R B AT ROE 27 646,400 467,030
Amounts due to investments accounted for using T AR EARR 2 18 &
the equity method ZHE 33 81,468 70,912
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHARE 34,884 26,362
1,816,689 1,238,439
Liabilities of disposal group classified AERFELHEZHERRNNAR
as held-for-sale 32 96,480 -
Total current liabilities REBEEAR 1,913,169 1,238,439
Total liabilities BEAE 1,913,374 1,238,571
Total equity and liabilities EZREEAE 5,499,041 4,576,515

The financial statements on pages 69 to 179 were approved by the Board of ~ F69E179E B HREABETEN T —+4F

Directors on 8 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf. “ANBHERERRRE -
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
#®XE FXE
Director Director
EF EFE

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated F576 2179 AN AMBREZHR IS o
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Bt REdR s R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HBE-F-F+t-A=t-HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARERERARL
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total
FER

B%  BfEE  RRER  R#EE  EXGR  REEA Rt ait
HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'O00
TER TER Tn Tén Tn TEn Tn TEn

Balanceat 1 January 2016 RoB-AE-B-R2gs 6900 0153 16843 493501 9% 1,501,863 Bile 3337944
Comprehensive income 3Lt
Profitfor the year ERgH - - - - - 203,964 24,692 312,656
Other comprehensive income/(loss Ef2ENE/ (B8)
Exchange diffeences ariing on tensation ofthe ~~ AEESNERAHBRREE,

financial statements of foreign subsiciaries EREE - - - - (44,563) - (3,357) (47,920)

Share of other comprehensive loss of investments B IVEREAE 2 IRE L
accounted for using the equity method Vo 20 ERZEER(ME20)
- exchange diferences arising on translation of e~ ~AE A NER T kRS

financial statements of foreign subsiciaries JERES - - - - (41,132) - - 1,132)
Release of eserve upon iluton of interest WEREAEL
in an investment accounted for using the ~ERERRERL
equity method Aote 20) Bz REW0)
~exchange diffrences arising on rensation of e~ ~HEBINBRARHER
financial statements of foreign subsiaries EL7ERER - - - - 116 - - 116
Fair value gains on revaluation of BfEMAHESHER
avalable-forsale financial assets (ore 17) LRTERE W 1) - - - 2,755 - - - 75
Total comprehensive income/(loss %G/ (BB)EE - - - 2,755 (85,579) 263,964 25,33 6,475

Share of other reserves of an investment accounted ~~ FEDIERENEZREZ

for usng the equity method /\ore 20) EbER I 20) - - - 1,48 = = = 1,48
Balanceat 31 December 2016 Ro2-AE+ZAZt-B2EH 62 ORI T4 SUSM (064 178580 541 3585667

okk
bl

N

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated %76 % 179 B 2z Jh4x & B &k 2 H 67
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

A mER s ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-S-RFt-A=1+-HLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRARERAARE

Non-
Share Share - Contributed Other Exchange Retained ~ controlling
capital premium surplus Teserves reserve earnings interests Total

BE BhER  BEER  AMBE  EiBE  RERW iR ait
HS00D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0O
TEL TAL TAL TEL TR TR TR TEL

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZ3-RE-F-R2EH 6,942 1,003,153 108,434 487,380 148,09 1318377 2,602 3214203
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for th year Emiai] - - - - - 183,486 9,206 192,692
Other comprehensive loss Afb2EEE
Exchange differences arising on trenslaion of the A& BNHE R A A AR

financial satements of foreign subsidiaries JEAES - - - - (36,595) - (1,91 (38,507)

Share of oher comprehensive loss of investments (SR EAE 2 B
accounted for using the equily method Aoie 20 ZERZEEE(HF 20)
~ exchange differences arising on tranlation of -BEBIMELANBRAEY

the financial statements of foreign subsiciaries JEREE - - - - (36,477) - - (36,477)
Release of eserve upon dilution of interest WEREARL
in an investment accounted for using the ~EREREERR
equity method (Nore 20) Bz RElZ0)
- exchange differences arising on translation of the ~~ ~AZ BB A AT HRK
financial satements of foreign subsiaries EHVENEE - - - - (80) - - (88)
Fairvalue loss on revaluation of an avalable-orsale  EfE—RHREECREE
financial asset Note 1) LATEERW 1) - - - 21) - - - 21)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(FE)/hE4E - - - 1) (73,160) 183,486 7,09 117,59

Share of other reserves of investments accounted BENERAAE L RE
for using the equity method (Note 20) LtRE W 20) - - - 6,142 - = = 6,142

Balance at 31 December 2015 RoF-EETA=t-AzEH 694 1,063,153 168434 493,501 74935 1,501,863 29,1

b 3,337,944

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ #76Z 1798 2 Th4R & M mE 2 HF &
financial statements. 713
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Bl R

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=t+—-HLEE

2016 2015
—2-R"f CZT-h%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt TERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZRERE
Cash generated from operations RemzRE 29(a) 917,763 481,260
Overseas income tax paid B EINER (8,932) (3,726)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBHEBREFA 908,831 477,534
Cash flows from investing activities REFBZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE BELRE (170,950) (100,160)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYME  BEMREMEHE
plant and equipment 29(b) 454 771
Purchase of an available-for-sale financial asset BE-—EIHNELHEE (82,518) -
Purchase of a financial asset at fair BE-HRQATESF AR
value through profit or loss JERMEE (78,000) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net cash paid fE—RELR  FEREMNE (1,975) -
Dividend income from an associated company RE RS QR ZREMA 20 21,840 7,280
Interest received BUF & 19,704 15,783
Net cash used in investing activities HERHAR S FH (291,445) (76,326)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank deposits BHERITIERR D, (38 n) 3,879 (13,541)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RMEEHMG/ (R RS
financing activities 3,879 (13,541)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEYZEMEE 621,265 387,667
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#H & KRS EEY 2,292,287 1,977,677
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents RekBReEBYMERLESE (108,574) (73,057)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRFERIREEEY 2,804,978 2,292,287
As at 31 December
Rt=—A=+—H
2016 2015
—B-XE C—FT—aF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt THET FHET
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: RekReEBYM2 O
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 24 2,726,733 2,292,287
Cash and cash equivalents included in A BERFHELE 2 HEARIH
disposal group classified as held-for-sale RekBReEEY 32 78,245 =

2,804,978 2,292,287

The notes on pages 76 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated %76 £179 B2 ViR M BRI ZEFREHH ©
financial statements.



76
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”), are principally engaged in the provision of
payment processing solutions, provision of financial solutions, sales
of electronic power meters and solutions and provision of platform
operation solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS”)
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAEFHEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 WBEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 BFHBE R EE

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group: () REBRW < #ra] R ERT

The following amendments to standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

e Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations — Amendments to HKFRS 11

e Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation — Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle,
and

¢ Disclosure initiative — Amendments to HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have
material impact on the financial statements for the
current year.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2016 and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for financial
assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:

(continued)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (continued)

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed
assessment of the classification and measurement of
financial assets, debt instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets would appear
to satisfy the conditions for classification as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and
hence there will be no change to the accounting for
these assets.

The other financial assets held by the Group include:

e Equity instruments currently classified as AFS for
which a FVOCI election is available, and

e Equity investments currently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") which would likely
continue to be measured on the same basis under
HKFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group
does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 ‘Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement’ and have not
been changed.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXREHHEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 WBEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) 2.1.1 Q;fﬁ?ﬁfﬁ:& BEZE(E)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted: b) & A BR 48 2 ¥ ] % Bl M@
(continued) B (8)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (continued) EAPBREEANFEIFR &
BMTAI(E)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
(“ECL”) rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured
at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.
While the Group has not yet undertaken a detailed
assessment of how its impairment provisions would be
affected by the new model, it may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group's
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. Based on
the transitional provisions in the completed HKFRS 9,
early adoption in phases was only permitted for annual
reporting periods beginning before 1 February 2015.
After that date, the new rules must be adopted in their
entirety. The Group does not intend to adopt HKFRS 9
before its mandatory date.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:

(continued)
HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts. The new standard is
based on the principle that revenue is recognised when
control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The
standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group’s financial statements
and has identified the following areas that are likely to
be affected:

e Revenue from service - the application of HKFRS
15 may result in the identification of separate
performance obligations which could affect the timing
of the recognition of revenue.

e Accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a
contract - certain costs which are currently expensed
may need to be recognised as an asset under HKFRS
15.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAEFHEHME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 WBEEE)
2.1.1 BFIEKER B EEE) (B)
(b) 1 A R4 2 #7 7T £ Bl & 32

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:

(continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

(continued)

e Rights of return HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right to
recover the goods from the customer and the refund
obligation.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the impact
of the new rules on the Group’s financial statements.
The Group will make more detailed assessments of the
impact over the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. At this stage, the Group does
not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted:

(continued)
HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (continued)

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$81,413,000, see Note 31. However, the
Group has not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group's profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and some
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not
qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before
its effective date.

There are no other HKFRS or HK(IFRIC) interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected to have
a material impact on the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control.
The Group controls entities when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of subsidiaries is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Business combination (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions - that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAEFHEHME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 MEBARE)
22145888 ()

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associated company, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable cost of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associated companies

An associated company is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investments in associated companies include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in an associated company, any difference between the
cost of the associated company and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associated company’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associated company is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associated company equals or
exceeds its interest in the associated company, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associated company
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for
using the equity method’ in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Associated companies (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associated company are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associated
companies. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associated
companies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to joint arrangement. Under
HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and determined it to
be joint venture. Joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interest in a joint venture
is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The Group’s
investment in a joint venture includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a
joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint venture
and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint venture is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive
income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘administrative
expenses’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXREHHEHME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 HNEBE(E)
(c) KEEET 2 a]

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,

whichever is shorter
Office furniture and equipment 18%-33%
10%-33%
18%-25%

Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group,
is classified as investment property. The cost of an investment
property comprises its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the property to its intended use. After
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Cost represents upfront prepayments made for
the rights to use the land for periods varying from 40 to 50 years.
Amortisation of leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Brand name, customer list, contracts, patents and in-progress

technology

Separately acquired brand name, customer list and contracts,
patents and in-progress technology are shown at historical
cost. Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent and in-
progress technology acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the date of acquisition. They have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of them over their estimated useful
lives (1.5-5 years).

(c) Software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3
to 5 years). Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXREHHEHME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 kEeREEZRE

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

2.12 Disposal group held-for-sale

Disposal group is classified as held-for-sale when its carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction
and a sale is considered highly probable. The disposal group is
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries) which
are classified as held-for-sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

2.13 Financial assets and liabilities

2.13.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in
the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, available-for-sale and other financial
liabilities at amortised cost. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets and liabilities
were acquired. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is
financial asset held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.13.1 Classification (continued)
(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and bills receivables’, ‘receivables from payment
processing solutions business’, ‘other receivables and
deposits’, “amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method’, ‘short-term bank deposits’, and
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.

(d) Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The Group’s other financial liabilities at amortised
cost comprise ‘trade and bills payables’, ‘payables
for payment processing solutions business’, ‘other
payables and accruals’ and ‘amounts due to investments
accounted for using the equity method’ in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXREHHEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 213 ERMEERABRB(E)
2.13.2 Recognition and measurement 2132 B RETE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair values through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial asset at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
‘other loss” in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as ‘other loss’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the group companies or the counterparty.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAEFHEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2,15 SREERE(E)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work-in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and related production overhead (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Trade and other receivables (continued)

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement within ‘administrative
expenses’. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.20 Trade and other payables

2.21

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXREHHEHME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 EMRIEERSH (&)
(a) BRI IS

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and a joint arrangement, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Only when there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and a joint arrangement only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Pension
Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
to the Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXREHHEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued) 2.22 EEEF(E)

(b) Pension obligations (continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as an employee benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Group is required
to contribute an amount to certain retirement benefit schemes
based on approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the
year of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those employees of the Group. Contributions
to these retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

(c) Profit sharing and bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amount for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown net of value added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue
is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(b) Provision of services

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised using the
stage of completion method, measured by reference to the
agreed milestones of work performed and is shown after
eliminating sales within the Group.

If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates
of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion,
estimates are revised. These revisions may result in increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by
management.

The Group recognises revenue from its payment processing
solution business when services are rendered which generally
coincide when the underlying transactions of the merchants
(customers of the Group) have been acknowledged by the
relevant banks and financial institutions, by which contractual
right of the Group and the merchants to receive cash flows
from the financial institutions is established and amount
to be received could be reliably estimated. Revenue from
early settlement services is recognised when the services are
rendered, which generally coincide when the settlement has
been completed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAEFHEHME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Other Income 2.25 Hfbg A

(a) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(b) Lease income - operating lease
Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

2.26 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
the attached conditions.

2.28 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets
when it is probable that the project will be a success considering
its commercial and technological feasibility, and costs can be
measured reliably. Other development expenditures are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors. The
Directors identified and evaluated financial risks in close co-
operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$, Japanese Yen
(“JPY”) and US dollars (“US$”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$, JPY and US$, and
there are no significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which are denominated
in a currency other than HK$, JPY or RMB, which are the
functional currencies of the major operating companies
within the Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that the
exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and US$
do not have material impact to the Group. The exchange
rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.

For companies with HK$ as their functional currency

At 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,724,000 (2015: HK$1,827,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of RMB denominated current account with
group companies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIRRBER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 Eﬂi’%lﬂ?ﬁi(%’?)
(a) Market risk (continued) @ Wﬁ’g@ﬁ /Ez;i
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) SMERLER ()

For companies with HK$ as their functional currency (continued)
As at 31 December 2016, if JPY had weakened/strengthened
by 1% against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,260,000 (2015: HK$1,220,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of JPY denominated current account with a
group company.

For companies with RMB as their functional currency

At 31 December 2016, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$6,273,000 (2015: HK$5,827,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated current
accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2016, if US$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$385,000 (2015: HK$444,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of US$ denominated cash and cash
equivalents as well as the current accounts with group
companies.

AT AEEER 2 AR(E)
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BI 4 Y [ Bt 18 0% Tl ¥ 0, 1
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F:1,220,00087C) 0 TEH
RABABEGER—HEE
NE)Z EREEEER =5 -

FUARBAENEER 2 A
RZE—R"EF+_A=+-—
B &B8TRARBEEF
B5% HMAAEZHERST
g BIF NIRRT & m A 530
SR 476,273,000 T(ZE
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ZHRAEBABTHEREE
NEIZEREEEELEZS -
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A ZXTHAREEE/F
B5% HitFAEHEHET
% B4 Bk B R R AR A
/ # 0 49385,000i (= B
—HF 4440008 L) =B
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BeEEMURELEEDRRZ
AREREEELZS -

(ii) Price risk (i) B AR B
REBBEATEHRERER -

(iiRERE R FENRER

The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

(ili) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises mainly from short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are non-interest-bearing and are measured at
amortised cost.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates on interest-bearing
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year of the
Group would have been approximately HK$28,230,000
(2015: HK$23,154,000) higher/lower due to interest income
earned on market interest rate.

MERRESRIAZATE
FREREATHMNRLEM
BB RE 2R REBZA
ZEBRERRARARTER
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B BB 2EHRTERR
BeRBASEBY A X EFH
S RBE100 1A B M H b Bt
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AR TSR BSR4
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23,154,000 7T) * Ty LT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
and bills receivables, receivables from payment processing
solutions business, other receivables and deposits, amounts
due from investments accounted for using the equity method,
short-term bank deposits and deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables, receivables
from payment processing solutions business, other receivables
and deposits, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed with state-
owned financial institutions and reputable banks. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable
and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of
credit limits to individual customers and recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivables.

Management considers the credit risk for amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity method to be
minimal after considering the financial condition of the entities.
Management has performed assessment over the recoverability
of the balances and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these entities.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of goods and
services to the largest customer accounted for 10% (2015:
18%) for the total revenue, and top five customers constituted
26% of the Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: 38%).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and ensure
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank loans. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group’s finance department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents
and flexibility in funding through having available sources of
financing.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above
balance required for working capital management are
transferred to interest bearing bank deposits with appropriate
maturities to manage its overall liquidity position. As at
31 December 2016, the Group maintained cash and bank
balances of HK$2,804,978,000 (2015: HK$2,292,287,000) that
is expected to be readily available to meet the cash outflows of
its financial liabilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

3
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EEBREE(E)

3.1

B E = ()
() RBEz/ER(E)

REBRBEERREELASTEM
E2ReBRH BRAAEHEES
BBz BIRITERABEEERER
FEeHN - R-T—~F+-A
=t+—8 AEEZHELRETH
%7/52,804,978,00087T( =2 —H
£ :2,292,287,000587C) « BB
NEMESREEZRERN -

TERBELEREANIIMGTH
B2 BAKEZFITEER
RESREBIHMBAR - ZRA
RESERANAURRAETRE -
ARERZTZEIK  BR+ @
ARz BHAERAKRES
£ o

Less than
1 year Total
DPR—F Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-A"E+ZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables FERT BRI B S R 266,270 266,270
Payables for payment processing INRGBERATRER
solutions business Z e FIR 787,667 787,667
Other payables and accruals e B R B AT FOR 611,981 611,981
Amounts due to investments accounted N EREANRZ
for using the equity method REZHRA 81,468 81,468
Total EHI 1,747,386 1,747,386
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZE-AF+=A=+—H
Trade and bills payables R R AR IR 201,223 201,223
Payables for payment processing XNRGRERRT RER
solutions business Z FEF0R 472,912 472,912
Other payables and accruals Hoth & A< 508 e e 5T IR 443,717 443,717
Amount due to an investment accounted e AR E AR 2 — 18
for using the equity method REZHRA 70,912 70,912
Total At 1,188,764 1,188,764
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3.3

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity.

The Group does not have any borrowings as at 31 December
2016 (2015: same).

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2016 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HREREBER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that were TRENAKEEER -_T—RF+=
measured at fair value at 31 December 2016. A=+—HARAFEHEZEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 -t =5 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTERT FTET TERT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE
— Unlisted equity security — 3 LHRAES - - 14,664 14,664
— Unlisted investment fund —ELmREES - - 91,449 91,449
Financial asset at fair value BAFESFAEBRZ
through profit or loss SREE
— Unlisted convertible —JE BT AT E AR
preference shares - - 76,880 76,880
Total &t - - 182,993 182,993
The following table presents the Group’s assets that were TREBWAEFBRA -_E—HE+—
measured at fair value at 31 December 2015. A=+—HBAFEFEZEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H E-H F=R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHECHEE
— Unlisted equity security —FEFHRAES - - 6,982 6,982
Total @t - 6,982 6,982
There were no significant transfers of financial assets between the ER ATEEFHEBYESRE

fair value hierarchy classifications during the year (2015: same). EEAEZE(-T—HF: HR) -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(a) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(c) Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3 financial
instruments include techniques such as discounted cash flow
analysis and net asset value model. There are no changes in
valuation techniques for the ‘available-for-sale financial asset —
unlisted equity security” during the year (2015: same).

The Group’s finance department includes a team that performs
the valuations of financial assets required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. As part of the valuation
process, this team reports directly to the chief financial officer
(CFO) and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBREEERRE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)
(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued) (COF=RZTHITAE)
In applying the discounted cash flow technique, management ERMRRERERME  ERE
has taken into account the estimated amount that the Group B RASESRBMAREER Y
would receive to sell the instrument at the balance sheet date, ETAEZAFERE  BEMNEUAR
taking into account current interest rates and the current credit HFFEBEARR - WHERMKR
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted cash flow Renegml  fatRRREeRE
techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on REBERNEE B 2 &EMT IR
management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market BUTAZBETSRRRAEL -

related rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial TRENEE-Z-—XRF+H
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016: ST-BUEEEE=feRIAL
Financial
asset at fair
value through

profit or loss Available-for-sale
- unlisted financial asset
convertible - unlisted
preference - unlisted investment
shares  equity security fund Total
BRAYE
stARE#Z AHHE
TREE- THEE
FLmagk -¥ L -¥ L
REER RAES REES G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER TR TER
As at 1 January 2016 RZE-XE-F—-H - 6,982 - 6,982
Additions RE 78,000 - 82,518 160,518
Fair value gains on revaluation REMPERERER
recognised in other B A TEYE
comprehensive income - 8,471 14,284 22,755
Fair value loss on revaluation RERRRZELR
recognised in profit or loss ATEES (1,120) - = (1,120)
Exchange realignment I 5% - (789) (5,353) (6,142)
As at 31 December 2016 R=ZF-~"E+-A=1-H 76,880 14,664 91,449 182,993
Total loss for the year included RERRAHEESARR
in profit or loss for assets held ZERERER
at the end of the year (1,120) - - (1,120)
Changes in unrealised loss for RELFABEZ
the year included in profit FRRERERE

or loss at the end of the year (1,120) - - (1,120)




112 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok £ S 5 0 % B ik

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEBEEERRE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DFEME (&)
(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued) (CE=Rz+HMTAE)

The following table represents the changes in level 3 financial TRENEE-_Z-—HF+_H
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2015: ST-HLEFERE=Re@MIAY

Available for-

sale financial

asset - unlisted

equity security

AfHE

TREE—

E kil

PR 3E 5

HK$'000

TAT

As at 1 January 2015 N-ZB-RF—H—H -

Addition nNE 7,355

Fair value loss on revaluation recognised A EA 2 EW & ER

in other comprehensive income BEATEER 21)
Exchange realignment ERTIERE:S (352)

As at 31 December 2015 R-B-HEF+-A=1-H 6,982

Total gains or losses for the year included ~— FAFEFLFTHEEFT ABE
in profit or loss for assets held ZFEANE SRR
at the end of the year -

Changes in unrealised gains or losses RELFABTRLZ
for the year included in profit or loss FARERPRE

at the end of the year -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
Quantitative information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

(a) Available-for-sale financial asset — unlisted equity security

The key unobservable assumptions used in the valuation of
the unlisted equity securities as at 31 December 2015 and

B Yo B e B ik

mHEERRE ()

D FEMEE (&)

(F=RzLHTAE)
FBERTAEEEABE
ENVEZECEM(E=ZR):

(@ AIftHESREE-JFLD

BAES
RoE-RER-F-AF
+=A=+—8 - FLTR

2016 are: AEFZEERACEER
TERBROT -
As at As at
31 December 31 December
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs 2016 2015
R-B-—R%F R-Z—1%F
EERM TUEZRBARE +ZA=+—-A +-A=t—H
Discounted cash flow analysis Pre-tax discount rate 21.2% 22.4%
BRBEREDN BABRER &
Terminal growth rate 3.0% 3.0%
bR R
Compound annual growth rate 22.0% 39.2%
BRFERER

As at 31 December 2016, the pre-tax discount rate used
to compute the fair value is 21.2% (2015: 22.4%). If the
discount rate shifted upward by 1%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$901,000 (2015:
HK$606,000). The higher the pre-tax discount rate, the
lower the fair value.

(b) Available-for-sale financial asset — unlisted investment fund

The key unobservable assumptions used in the valuation of
the unlisted investment fund as at 6 February 2016 (date of
addition) and 31 December 2016 are:

RZE—R"F+=-A=+—
B BEstELAFEZR
Al BRI X B212% (=%
—FF :224%)° KRR
EEFR1% HEMEZERK
HZHEHA901,0008 T
(ZZF — A F 606,000
Jo) o BATERR S B A
FEBIE -

b AIREEEREE—F LD

BEES
RZZE—RNE-AXNHOR
EEHIR_E—XRE+=
A=+—H FLTRER
SZHERAZEETATE
REBHRAT
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3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

mHREERRE (&)

3.3 AFEME(H)

(F=RKzzHTAE)
MAEATABRGABEER
FEZELERHE=ZR) : (&)

(b) Available-for-sale financial asset — unlisted investment fund b) A 4 i & /i SREE-FEDR
(continued) ARG (8)
As at
As at 6 February
31 December 2016
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs 2016 (date of addition)
RZT—RF
R-B—AF —HARH
fhER T FUBERAHE +-A=+—8H (RNERH)
Net asset value (Note i) N/A N/A N/A
BEFE(EED TEA g A i A
Note: Wit

(i) The Group has determined that the audited net asset value

() AEERT  AERAREAAN

approximates fair value of the unlisted investment fund after
applying a portfolio discount 10%.

(c) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss — unlisted
convertible preference shares

The key unobservable assumptions used in the valuation
of the unlisted convertible preference shares as at 10 June
2016 (date of addition) and 31 December 2016 are:

BI0% % KEVAEFERE
PIELTREEGZNFE -

OBRRAFEFABZEZERE
E— I bR AR ELK

RZE—RERNA+TBECREHR
HIRZE-—RETA=1—
B EEmARRELERZMHE

BRA 2 EEFTBEREN
T
As at
As at 10 June
31 December 2016
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs 2016  (date of addition)
R-FB—RF
R-B—R%F NATH
EEE M TUEZHARE +-A=t-H (REBRH)
Discounted cash flow analysis Pre-tax discount rate 32.2% 31.8%
MIRBEREDH fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ
Terminal growth rate 3.0% 3.0%
Bimig R
Compound annual growth rate 44.4% 52.3%
EAFHEEE

As at 31 December 2016, the pre-tax discount rate used
to compute the fair value is 32.2%. If the discount rate
shifted upward by 1%, the impact on profit or loss would
be HK$1,791,000. The higher the pre-tax discount rate, the

lower the fair value.

R-_Z—KR"F+_A=+—

B MEs

BERFEZBA

Bh 3R K 532.2% - fit BL 3] X
FH1% BEBZZFEBA
1,791,000 7 7T ° ¢ A 8A 3R = i
2 8D FEBIE -



=R (R E) BRAH

B ANEER 115

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables
The Executive Directors determine the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on the credit history of its
customers. The Directors reassess the provision periodically.

(b) Impairment of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is written down to net realisable value when
there is an objective evidence that the cost of inventories may not be
recoverable. The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those
inventories are aged and damaged, if they have become wholly or
partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost of
inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated costs to be
incurred to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off to the consolidated income statement is
the difference between the carrying value and net realisable value
of the inventories. In determining whether the inventories can
be recoverable, significant judgement is required. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration
and extent by all means to which the amount will be recovered.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRS:ETRHE(E)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(OFLETEMIAATE

(c) Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

The fair values of the unlisted financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market, including available-for-sale financial assets and
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. The
Group has used discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model for the unlisted financial instruments that are not traded in
active market.

(d) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognised when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

WHERBRTELFZIFLTERTA
(BRAHEESREERZAFETA
BazeBEE) A VFEDRABMHER
EE - AEEERHEERSENL
WHEREBREREREPREFTROR
R AREEHRAELFEERTER S
ZFLEMERTARARSREMBER
BEFERETON -

(d) Fr &8 IR E B E

AREETRARLZEERDBHNNG
B EEAMEHBBEAFREKAR -
RERXH R B2 BB RBETATMA
M8 - MZEEENREHBERER
FEREAER  ARFERETENRL
BTHRAMEHLETH AR -

BRETREZERBEBROELTREA
BENERER R MG ARERTLF
FEE R Z AR EBROBR T
R HERPRABRMNERIERER
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS 5 WA Hitlg ARHEMEE
Revenue, other income and other loss recognised during the year are as RERNHERZ WA - B A K E A EE 0
follows: T

For the year
ended 31 December
BEt-A=t—-ALEE
2016 2015
“E-R"E C—T-hRF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET
(restated)
(&5))
(Note 6)
GEL))
Turnover =]
Provision of payment processing solutions RUEXNRIBEBRA R 1,050,313 511,178
Provision of financial solutions RESBBRAAR 348,079 382,096
Sales of electronic power meters and solutions HEBRIEERMIERAZE 314,778 209,860
Provision of platform operation solutions RUTEECHATR 208,067 273,712
1,921,237 1,376,846
Other income Haplg A
Interest income FEUA 19,704 15,783
Subsidy income L ON 10,967 14,252
Rental income IR ON 3,584 3,231
Others HAth 11,950 13,983
46,205 47,249
Other loss Hip i
Fair value loss on a financial asset at fair value BAFEFABRZERHEE

through profit or loss 2 NHEREE (1,120) -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are used to
make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group from a
product perspective.

Due to continual development of the Group, management has
changed its internal organisational structure to align more closely
with the Group’s strategic decision and market dynamics to better
serve customers. In particular, telecommunication solutions segment
and payment platform solutions segment have been merged into one
operating segment — platform operation solutions segment. The Group
has adopted the new organisational structure as the reporting format
effective for the year ended 31 December 2016. The comparative
segment information has been restated to reflect the current
organisational structure.

The Group is organised into four main operating segments in these
internal reports:

(a) Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in provision
of payment processing services, merchants recruiting and related
products and solutions;

(b) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision of
information system consultancy, integration and operation services
and sales of information technology products to financial institutions
and banks;

(c) Electronic power meters and solutions — principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of electronic power meters, data collection
terminals and provision of information system consultancy services
and the sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips; and

(d) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the provision of
telecommunication and mobile payment platform operation services
and operation value-added services.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings/(losses) before
interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”).

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

TRER
EREREEFGRMUMEHREAT ZA

BHREMETLEDHE -

EZENERARERARERE -

ARAKERERE  EEECERNTA
BRBUABROARE KR IERTE R H5
PRAHEFPREEERS - FHIZ - EF
BRBEDBRINFaBRTESEE
AHMAE-RENE-VToBEMRITRE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 ZSEERGE)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by operating AEERNFRREB DB MAREEDT
segment is as follows: mr
Electronic
Payment power  Platform
processing  Financial metersand  operation Total
solutions  solutions  solutions solutions Others Group
xft SRR
REEE &R EmRk VoEE
BARE BRARE BRER BRRE Hft KE&H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TER TER TR
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-KF
TZA=t-HLEE
Segment tumnover NEEER 1,050,313 351,407 314,778 210,766 - 1,927,264
Inter-segment turnover NEREER - (3,328) - (2,699) - (6,027)
Turnover from external customers ~ RESNIEP 2 B £ 1,050,313 348,079 314,778 208,067 - 1,921,237
Segmental EBITDA AR EBITDA 253,239 26,473 22,744 8,055 (13,438) 297,073
Depreciation & (83,587) (1,449) (3,949) (3,323) 282) (92,589
Amortisation B - (10,267) (237) - - (10,504)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) AREEE R/ (B8) 169,652 14,757 18,559 4732 (13,7200 193,980
Unallocated other income ROEEMIA 4,900
Unallocated corporate expenses RABRBERX (66,557)
Share of results of invesments GBS ENRZRE 2 EE
accounted for using
the equity method 198,992
Gain on dilution of interest R EARZ =18
in an investment accounted for RERZHEEYR
using the equity method 826
Profit before income tax BRFTERATR T 332,141
Income tax expense FEHAX (19,485)
Profit for the year FREH 312,656
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER(GE)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by operating AEERNFRREB DB MAREEDT
segment is as follows: (Continued) mr (&)
Electronic
Payment power Platform
processing  Financial  metersand  operation Total
solutions  solutions  solutions  solutions Others Group
X ERLitE
LR £ Emk YoEE
BRIR  BRIR  BRIR  BRAIE e £EAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR TR TR
(restated)
(Z31)
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z2-1%
TZRA=T-HLEFE
Segment tumnover NEERE 511,188 384,147 209,860 277,828 - 1,383,023
Inter-segment turnover AEREER (10) (2,051) - (4,116) - (6,177)
Turnover from external customers — RESNHEF 2 & %% 511,178 382,09 209,860 273,712 - 1,376,846
Segmental EBITDA 2B EBITDA 99,917 26,814 (10,990) 35,292 (15,557) 135,476
Depreciation e (39,652) (2,291) (4,348) (5728) (626)  (52,645)
Amortisation 3 - (10,267) (496) - - (10,763)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) AREEE R/ (B8) 60,265 14256 (15834) 29,564 (16,183) 72,068
Unallocated other income FOREMUA 7,226
Unallocated corporate expenses RABRBERX (72,801)
Share of results of invesments IENEREARZ
accounted for using REZ#%
the equity method 198,218
Loss on dilution of interest in NEREAR —BRE
an investment accounted for EalEER
using the equity method (8,442)
Profit before income tax BRI ERATR T 196,269
Income tax expense FEHAX (3,577)
Profit for the year FREH 192,692
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used for all
segments, including depreciation of property, plant and equipment
of HK$1,542,000 (2015: HK$1,603,000), depreciation of investment
properties of HK$206,000 (2015: HK$172,000) and amortisation of
leasehold land of HK$760,000 (2015: HK$759,000), respectively.

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016 and additions to
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

B Yo B e B ik

DTEER(E)

APBELERTIEARMBAEZHA
ABEEME - WERRETE1,542,0008
FT(ZZ—A%F :1,603,00087T) "ED
3 E 206,000 T (ZF—F4F : 172,000
Br) REE LB $760,0008 L(ZF
—FH4% 1 759,000 7T) °

RZBE-—RET_A=T—HZHoHEEN

BERBE-_Z-RE+T_A=1T—HLHF
BIFRBEEZREMT

Electronic
Payment power  Platform
Processing  Financial metersand  operation Total
solutions solutions  solutions  solutions Others Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
xf EHiTE
RERE  LRBR  EmRR TREE
BARE FR BRRE  BAAE B R9E E#  SE&H
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
AR TiEx TER FiEx TER TR FER AR
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZA=1-8
Segment assets PREE 2,004,105 333,645 412,233 904,958 81,248 2,945,638 (1,182,786) 5,499,041
Segment liabilities PEEE (1,634,724)  (303,450)  (300,414)  (601,608)  (182,146)  (73,818) 1,182,786 (1,913,374)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BZE=-F-AR%
t=R=t-ALFE
Additions to non-current assets  FFRHEAE LRE (TR
(excluding long-term RS ERE
deposits, investments ANEZHE e
accounted for using equity PREERELTE
method, available-for-sale FABEZEREE)
financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through
profit and loss) 167,628 142 1,223 4171 166 82 - 173,412
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TEER(E)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 and additions to RZB-RAF+_A=+—HZHEEER
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows: BERBE_Z-NF+A=+—HLHF
BEIHFRBEEIREWT -
Electronic
Payment power  Platform
Processing  Financial  metersand  operation Total
solutions ~solutions ~ solutions  solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
i Eiite
RERE ¢ EmRk TREE
BARE BATR  BRIR  BRIE it ASE BH SEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FEr TEnr TERX  TAR TR TER  TER
(restated)
(Z3)
As at 31 December 2015 R=2-A%+=A=1-8
Segment assets PREE 1,323,709 320,848 349,784 857,379 89,909 2,836,084 (1,201,198) 4,576,515
Segment liabilities PEER (1,086,065)  (285,740)  (254,614)  (559,003) (182,878 (71,469) 1,201,198  (1,238,571)
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=F-1F
tZA=t-HLFE
Additions to non-current assets  FFiEAEZFE
(excluding long-term (TaERSR:
deposits, investments DERENEZRE
accounted for using equity AHEESREARER
method, available-for-sale BATETABR
financial assets and financial 2 BEEE)
assets at fair value through
profit and loss) 163,855 1431 2,316 1,658 448 1,383 - 171,091

Unallocated assets mainly include investment accounted for using
the equity method of HK$1,663,250,000 (2015: HK$1,525,040,000)
and cash and cash equivalents of HK$747,471,000 (2015:

HK$720,743,000).

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly comprise

additions to property, plant and equipment.

Revenue of approximately HK$185,215,000 (2015: HK$253,241,000)
were derived from a single external customer. These revenues were
attributable to the platform operation solutions segment in the PRC

(2015: same).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the

segment.

APREETERHEUERZEIARZR
%1,663,250,000/8 T(= & — A F:
1,525,040,0008 L) A R BR & LR & F
B %747,471,000%8 m(= & — R F:
720,743,000 7T) °

FR FRBEECRETRZBREME
W5 REFHIRE -

I A 49185,215,0008 T(ZE— R4 :
253,241,000 B L) EXBE—INBERF o
ZEBRAREFEZFRELHERARDH
(ZZ—EF : #A) -

RESeREZERRAEGEFERR—

AR E - RFEERBBERIBZE
Bok
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial terms.
The revenue from external parties reported to the Board of Directors is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated income
statement.

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Japan and Macau. The Group’s turnover by geographical locations,
which is determined by the locations in which the turnover are
generated from, is as follows:

DTEER(E)

HAMZ HEE— BRI - DEE
FEEE S DR 2 WA FAREA Wit %
~HZBAEE -

B Yo B e B ik

AEETERERTEAE 8 AAR
R ARERMES D 2 EXRB(AE
FEELZEET)EIMT

For the year
ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015

i VAY: S T

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER TET

Mainland China EEIpN = 1,863,410 1,336,190
Hong Kong Bt 31,506 14,098
Japan B 19,110 17,006
Macau BT 7,211 9,552
1,921,237 1,376,846

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding long-term deposits,
investments accounted for using the equity method, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss)
and current assets by geographical locations, which is determined by
the geographical locations in which the asset is located, is as follows:

AEERBREAND ZFRBEETBER
HEe  UESEARZERE  AHEES
BEENMEAFEFABRGZEREE)R
nBEE(RABEEMRELET) &I

T

As at 31 December
BETZA=1+T—HLEE

2016 2015
“E-RE C—ZT—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Mainland China A KB 302,173 243,386
Hong Kong Bt 9,676 20,159
Japan B - 5218
311,849 268,763

Current assets REBEE

Mainland China B KR 2,386,544 1,796,956
Hong Kong Bt 720,741 760,721
Japan =N 222,590 203,772
Macau R P 7,640 9,963
3,337,515 2,771,412
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7  EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 HMEESZBX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, administrative RIFEKAE - HERX RITHERFAZH
expenses are analysed as follows: AT
For the year
ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+t-BLEE
2016 2015
—F-"F ZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Auditor’s remuneration ZERN BN & 3,500 3,370
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) #1% « BE KRBT E (HT:E14) 94,131 54,248
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 13) REMFEFE (T 13) 206 172
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 15) ME e (M5 15) 983 995
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) B EE#HE (KT 16) 10,281 10,527
Employee benefit expense (including EERMZ
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (RIEE=ZHL) (MFE9) 443,743 457,179
Costs of inventories sold (including EHFENAE(BE
write-back of provision/provision BERE FERE)
for inventories) (Note 21) (ffzE21) 234,825 203,931
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings it RiEF 7 EHBHES 27,902 37,514
Operating lease rentals in respect of equipment R KB HEE 17 6,761
Research and development costs (including staff cost) 7t KEZERA(BIEE TR A) 154,210 139,906
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BELRB REER 754 140
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories (BEEE)  FERE (1,385) 5,012
Write-back of provision for impairment of JEUBR FORE 2
trade receivables, net BB D FE (3,507) -
8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 8 SMNEBRFR
The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the consolidated income HE_ZTAFT-A=+—HLEFE R
statement and included in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 maBaERTRRBEATRERZIME

B R BEE A5,371,0008T(ZE— R F:
9,623,000/87T) ©

December 2016 amounted to HK$5,371,000 (2015: HK$9,623,000).
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9 EERINAX(EREEME)

For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-RA=1t—HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-XRE _—ZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THET

Wages and salaries % 385,066 393,277
Pension costs and social security costs RS R G RERA 58,677 63,902
443,743 457,179

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year included four (2015: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis shown in Note 35. The emoluments payable to
the remaining one (2015: one) individual during the year are as follows:

EEEEHAL
AEEAFERAEa T ALTEERA(Z
E-RF NB)EE - BEzHEBER
A3SOMPRM - AEERNBT—R(=
T—RF: —FB)ALTZMEWT -

For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLLEE
2016 2015
ZE-XR"E —Z-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension cost - defined contribution plan

BRERA TR

FERT FET

e R REYHE 2,557 2,211
A2 43 43

2,600 2,254

The emoluments fall within the following band:

BT ToIAR

For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-—RA=1t—HLEE
2016 2015
ZE2-XRE —ZT—-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$4,000,000

2,000,001% 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T = 1
3,000,00175 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T 1 =

1 1
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

10 FiEBiRAx

BERFEHAUNE ARG ERTE MR E
16.5% (Z2—HF : 16.5%)5 8 < HiN&E
FRBRILF NG ERTER  BAEE
BEMTERERZHETE -

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+-—A=t+—-HLEE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Current tax HETIE
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEB - -
- Overseas taxation —gHNRIR 20,017 4,415
Deferred tax BN IE (13) (48)
Adjustments in respect or prior years BEFEHE (519) (790)
Income tax expense TSR 19,485 3,577

Effective from 1 January 2008, subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT”) in accordance with the new PRC CIT
Law as approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007. According to the new PRC CIT Law and the relevant regulations,
the new CIT tax rate applicable is 25% unless preferential rates are
applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 15%.

BEZEARRKRAENR-_ZTFTLE=A
TARBBBZATRCEMGEE(EEM
B RBREER - P ECERERZES
“ERN\F-A-HEER RIFEEBE

BRRMBARERT - ZRFEKEA
7]

AABRHMEEMERERRE25% 2R

i

f—FEHBARAEBREXRMERZRE
RA BB AR (S d
£ BEREEAERKER15% °
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal

subsidiaries

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions Information Technology
Limited (“ABS”) and Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology Limited
(“Hangzhou Electronic Technology”) were renewed as HNTE in 2015
under the new PRC CIT Law. BETTHIZ B R A E)(“SXF”) was qualified
as HNTE in 2014 under the new PRC CIT Law. As such, the applicable
corporate income tax rate of ABS, Hangzhou Electronic Technology and
SXF was 15% (2015: 15%) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited (“HN Mobile Pay”) was qualified
as HNTE in 2013 under the new CIT Law and HNTE qualification
was expired in 2016. HN Mobile Pay did not renew for the HNTE
qualification and the applicable corporate income tax rate was 25%
(2015: 15%) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

10

B Yo B e B ik

R (&)
TEMEA D ZERCEFERE

traBeEEERMBERAR(REEE
EEDERMMEEE THRMAR A (M
BYEM DR - E—AFREFCEMER
FEMARHBINGE - BN NERA
AISXFNR T NEREHCENEH
FRERARTEMCE - Al BE=F
—NF+-A=Z+-BLEFE aBeEE
B MINEFRM R SXFZ @B EMER
EH15% (ZFE—FEF : 15%) o

HMEEEERERRMERAR(HERE
BE DR -_Z-ZFRENTFELERSE
WERERKARHRMER - MMM
CEEREN T RFIH - HrEaER
Y BEFSARMEEER  RBEE-F
—ARET A=t -BULEEZERLEMR
BRER25%(ZF—0F : 15%) °

AEERRASRAG N 2 HIEERABERR
FAREREM EFOR KM B IR RN
BLEBMT

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-A"E —T-4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Profit before income tax BR ETS B AT 8 ) 332,141 196,269
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to BREERRES RN
profit in the respective countries BREMB R E 2 BA 52,879 33,293
Tax effects of: MBTE
Income not subject to tax TR N (45,360) (41,200)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes SR = AT 2 F X 4,837 11,247
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses HABERERZHEBR (12,017) (8,787)
Tax losses for which no deferred income W ERIE PSR 2 R 1R
tax was recognised 19,665 9,814
Adjustments in respect of prior years BEFEHE (519) (790)
Income tax expense FTERAY 19,485 3,577

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.9% (2015: 17.0%).
The change is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective countries.

MEFHERABRER5.9%(ZF—RF:
17.0%) ° EERETHAREE 2 T8 A FRE
HERZANEHES LR -
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DIVIDENDS 11 RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year BE_Z-—XRETA=1t—HLEFE"
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). ARATEENEIEREMKE(ZE -1
FE)o
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
(a) Basic a) &R
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit BREXRBN RN AIERFFE AR
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted EENRFERDETEBRINEFHE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. AtHE o
For the year
ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t—-ALEE
2016 2015
-"E CZT-8F
Profit attributable to equity holders AREEGRE ARG
of the Company (HK$'000) (F&T) 283,964 183,486
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE BN T2
shares in issue (thousands) (FH&) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) BREARRN (ERETT) 0.102 0.066
(b) Diluted b) #58

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the net income
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all potentially dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has three
categories (2015: same) of potentially dilutive shares: share options
issued by an associated company — PAX Global Technology Limited
(“PAX Global”), and share options and convertible preference shares
issued by an associated company — Cloopen Group Holdings Limited
(“Cloopen”), a former joint venture of the Group (Note 20).

Dilutive effects arise from share options issued by PAX Global for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: same).

BREERNRERMEBEEH TR
1 Z B M ABBNFE R BEITEINE
BENEFHEEE

BE_T-RFET-_A=t—HLFE"
AEEE=B(ZZ—0F: AR)AE
FHERE R - —RBERR B E
REMBAERAR(BERERD&ETZ
fE Mk i ), —FelBt & 2 5] — Cloopen Group
HoIdingsLimlted((C[oopenJ ZKE.@LJ
RELR)BRITZBRERITBEELR
(Ffz£20) °

BEERRHE S A%+ A=+
ALFEEMRREEREYE(—F
—E4 < ) ¢
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (continued)

For share options issued by PAX Global, the exercise of the
outstanding share options in PAX Global would have a dilutive effect.
The exercise of the share options in PAX Global would be dilutive if
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company will
decrease as a result of the decrease in the Group's share of profit of
associated company and reduce in gain on dilution of interest in an
associated company. A calculation is done to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual fair value of the associated company’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options of PAX Global. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options
of PAX Global.

For share options and convertible preference shares issued by
Cloopen, as at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the
interest in Cloopen was zero (2015: same). As at 31 December 2016,
the Group's share of loss exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares
of Cloopen, the exercise of the abovementioned share options and
convertible preference shares would not have any impact on the
diluted earnings per share.

B Yo B e B ik

12 SREBF(E)

(b) B8 (48)

RABRNETZBRENS  TEA=
RIRZRTTEBRER AR ERE -
fis A 52 B R A B 2 A AL AR A R B &
DA EREERER D SR A L EE
SR B ARIEEFFERRD - ATERR
RECBBRERAAHEYE - BEAR
DFHERB RO EE (RHE R FRR
ZFHFEENFEERE) HRBEEERK
ZARITE B ERH 2 RBREEEEER
B EXFRtEZRN BB NERRAR
RIRZ BRIEETR 2 CHITRNBEE
L -

L Cloopen ¥ 17 2 B8 IR # J A 2 R 8
EEmME RZZE-—RE+ZA=+—
A RCloopenZ BHmEHERT(ZFT
—hF A RBE_T-RFTZ
A=+—FB FEEEGEERBBER
Cloopen BB 2 #5 @ HATH LitEER
ERABRELRE TS HEREERT
EREMTE -
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12

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (continued)
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12 SREBF(E)

(b) #H (&)

For the year
ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-x"F ZT-0F
Profit attributable to equity holders ARREEFTA AEIEEF
of the Company (HK$'000) (F&7T) 283,964 183,486
Assuming exercise of all outstanding R —EEE AR ETZARA
dilutive share options issued by TR BRI R T
the associated company (HK$'000) (F&7T)
— Decrease in share of profit of — R —TEEE DR Z G AR
the associated company (1,027) (1,509)
— Reduce in gain/increase in loss on dilution —R—EBERR 2 BB S
of the associated company R/ BRI (6,573) (4,770)
Adjusted profit attributable to equity holders RAEE BREERT 2 ARF]
of the Company used to determine diluted REFA AEIEERHR G
earnings per share (HK$'000) (F&7T) 276,364 177,207
Weighted average number of ordinary BREBRMN 2 EER
shares for diluted earnings nEFRE (Th)
per share (thousands) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable ARRERFTA ANEIE K
to the equity holders of the Company BEEN (8RET)
(HK$ per share) 0.100 0.064
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 REWE
Buildings
BF
HK$’000
FEx
At 1 January 2015 R=—Z-RF—H—H
Cost AR 3,446
Accumulated depreciation RFHE (1,385)
Net book amount FEFE 2,061
Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ-_Z-—A&+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book value FOREFE 2,061
Depreciation nE (172)
Closing net book value FIERTEFE 1,889
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+=A=+—H
Cost (BN 3,446
Accumulated depreciation 2iinE (1,557)
Net book amount RmEFE 1,889
Fair value (Note) NEEEE) 10,362
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z-—X"F+-A=1+—-HLEE
Opening net book value FOREFE 1,889
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 14) & E%% - A k& (A5 14) 371
Depreciation nE (206)
Closing net book value FREEFE 2,054
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RF+=A=+—H
Cost (DN 4,125
Accumulated depreciation 25HiE (2,071)
Net book amount R E 2,054
Fair value (Note) NEEHEE) 11,017
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13

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note:

Fair value measurements using significant other observable inputs (level 2)

The investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu Building, No. 67 Fu Cheng
Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC Qb8 R 2K K675 B AE5-17
1£). The fair value as at 31 December 2016 was assessed by the independent and

professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited.

The valuation was determined using the direct comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as property size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price

per square foot.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for future

repairs and maintenance (2015: Nil).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to administrative expenses
(2015: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income statement:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

13 REWE(GE)

Wt -

DEABEANEREARBEAATEGE(E D)

REMEMNERATEREBKE 67 HRBAE
15-178 - RZB—R"F+ZA=T—HZATE
BV EESERGEMTHEEETEBREER

RARRE -

HEDRAERLREAETE - MR LEY
RZHEERERIZER(MIMYEER) 2 ER
fEHEE - WRETEZRERGAERET AR

RZB-—RE+-A=t—R0 F*EEHEEH
AEEERREMAFREZANEE(Z2 -1
FiE)

FAMBNERXCHATRER(Z2—0%:
1ER) °

UTERENEAE RaRAHER

For the year

ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t-HLEE

2016 2015
ZE-ARE “Z-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income AeWA 3,584 3,231
Direct operating expenses arising from investment TEHSWAZRENEREEZ
property that generated rental income HREERX (332) (331)
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13 REWRE)
There were no direct operating expenses arising from investment property that did not FR MEEESRAZRENETRELEMNE
generate rental income during the year. RIEEHAX -
The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its investment properties under AEERBELCERARLELRENEZBAN T
operating leases ranged from 1 to 2 years. ZE2F o
At 31 December 2015 and 2016, the future aggregate minimum rentals receivables RIB-RER-ZB-RET-A=+—H BE
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: TAREE RNz AR RERKERBANT -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
No later than 1 year THEB1E 2,956 2,879
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years HEiE 1 AR5 F 885 34

3,841 2,913
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ BERRZRE
Office
Leasehold furniture and  Plant and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
BAE

B7 RENREE RARRE BERERE t: aat
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-A-H
Cost KA 43,038 28,061 232,760 100,159 32,145 436,163
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (15569)  (17,650)  (200,809)  (62,812)  (22,989) (319,829
Accumulated impairment loss ZEREBE - - - (7,508) - (7,508)
Net book amount REFE 27,469 10,411 31,951 29,839 9,156 108,826
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ-Z-1fF
TZAZt-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 27,469 10,411 31,951 29,839 9,156 108,826
Additions HE - 425 6,759 161,518 2389 171,001
Disposals (Note 29(b)) W& 290)) - - (646) (265) - (911)
Depreciation nE (1,950) (3,434)  (14132)  (31,931) (2,801)  (54,248)
Exchange realignment S (1,384) (766) (1,329) (6,610) 435 (10,524)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8309 214,234
At 31 December 2015 RZB-E%+=A=t+-H
Cost KA 40,760 26,823 211,569 249,444 31,502 560,098
Accumulated depreciation REHE (16,625 (20,187)  (188966)  (89,806)  (23,193)  (338,777)
Accumulated impairment loss ZEREBE - - - (7,087) - (7,087)
Net book amount REFE 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8300 214,234
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-~f
TZA=t+-BL%E

Opening net book amount FNERmFE 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8309 214,234
Additions HE - - 16,257 154,425 671 171353
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ut el NG| - 159 7 - = 166
Transfer to investment properties BARENE

(Note 13) (15t 13) (371) - - . = (371)
Disposals (Note 29(b)) W& Wizt 29(b)) - - (980) (159) (69) (1,208)
Depreciation e (1,819) (2,108) (13,635  (73,887) (2,682)  (94,131)
Transferred to disposal group BRENERRBIFLEL

classified as held-for-sales (Note 32) ~ HE&ERR(Hfiz32) - = (4,748) (2,782) = (7,530)
Exchange realignment I 5 (1,269) (292) (1,280  (12,226) (332 (15399
Closing net book amount FREmFE 20,676 4,395 18224 217,922 5897 267,114
At 31 December 2016 R=Z-R"F+=A=1+-H
Cost KR 37,812 25700 127,341 377,835 30,138 598,826
Accumulated depreciation REAHE (17136) (21,305  (109,117) ~ (153,248)  (24,241)  (325,047)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitRERE - - - (6,665) - (6,665)

Net book amount RE#E 20,676 4,395 18,224 217,922 5,897 267,114
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15

Depreciation expense of HK$78,230,000 (2015: HK$36,777,000)
has been expensed in cost of sales, HK$381,000 (2015: HK$879,000)
in selling expenses and HK$15,520,000 (2015: HK$16,592,000) in
administrative expenses respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, banking facilities of approximately
HK$17,786,000 (2015: HK$21,244,000) were secured by buildings with
a net book value of HK$9,330,000 (2015: HK$10,955,000).

LEASEHOLD LAND

The movement of the net book amount for leasehold land is as follows:

B Yo B e B ik

14 9% BERKRE(E)

15

FER S F78,230,0008 L (ZE—FHF:
36,777,000/ 70 ) B 7 84 & B A B S -
381,000/ L(ZZ —H4F : 879,000/5 L)
P& B X X 88 % 15,520,000 T(Z
—FHF 116,592,000/ 8 L) ERTTHRERYL
8H o

RZE—RE+-A=1+—08 " BTEEH
17,786,000 7T(Z—F — F 4 : 21,244,000
BT) AR EFE 9,330,000 0(—E—H
F :10,955,000870) ZEFERE

HE i

MET I REFEZEHMT -

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015

—F-1F ZT-@WF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TET

Opening net book amount FOREHE 33,785 35,383
Amortisation B (983) (995)
Exchange realignment PE 3, B (587) (603)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 32,215 33,785

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$55,000 (2015:
HK$57,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and HK$928,000 (2015:
HK$938,000) in administrative expenses, respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, banking facilities of approximately
HK$17,786,000 (2015: HK$21,244,000) were secured by leasehold
land with a total net carrying amount of HK$2,948,000 (2015:
HK$3,212,000).

FRBEERP5000ET(ZE—18
F:57,0008 L) ERBEERANZHK
928,000/ 7L(=Z T — A F : 938,000/ 7T )
RITERERAY S -

RZE-RE+ZA=1+—0 " $17EELN
17,786,000 7T(— T — R £ : 21,244,000
BB REREFES2,948,0008 (=
T—ARF 3,212,000 7T) ZHE L EE
o



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ok £ S 5 0 % B ik

16

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 BILEE
Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand development  Inprogress  Computer
Goodwill Brandname  contracts costs  technology  software Total
L Vi)
EFEER CBRZEX
ik Gl B ZBEEA WERMEE  ERRH &%
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1%-f-R
Cost HA 127,260 4,99 4,99 25,234 6,676 30,800 199,962
Accumulated amortisation ZithH - (4,99%) (499%)  (25156) (6,454) 71 4330
Accumulated impairment loss ZitREER (127,260) - - - - - (127,260)
Net book amount RRFE - - - 78 22 29,089 29,389
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E-1F
TZBEt-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE - - - 78 0 29,089 29,389
Amortisation charge Bt - - - 42) (218 (10267 (10,527)
Exchange realignment B AR - - - 0) ) - )
Closing net hook amount FRERFE - - - 33 - 18,822 18,855
At 31 December 2015 R-B-RF+tZA=1-A
Cost B 116,436 4721 4721 23,842 6,308 30,800 186,828
Accumulated amortisation ZitEH - (47 @7 (23,809 (6308 (11978 (51537)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitRESE (116,436) - - - - - (116436)
Net book amount REFE - - - 33 - 18,822 18,855
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-AF
TZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENRELE - - - 33 - 18,822 18,855
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHBAR 1,515 - 200 - - 178 1,893
Amortisation charge 3 b - - - (14 - (10267 (10,281)
Exchange realignment A% - - - (1) - = (1)
Closing net hook amount ERERTE 1,515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RETZA=1-H
Cost A 104,686 4,446 4,646 22,456 5,942 30,978 173,154
Accumulated amortisation Zite - (4,446) (4440 (22439 (5,94 (2245  (59517)
Accumulated impairment loss ZiHRERE (103,171) - 1 = = - (103171)
Net book amount REFE 1,515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
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During the year, amortisation expense of HK$10,267,000 (2015:
HK$10,485,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and HK$14,000
(2015: HK$42,000) in administrative expenses, respectively.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets include unlisted equity
security and unlisted investment fund with the following details:

16

17

B Yo B e B ik

BREE(E)

FR BEBAT10,267,0008 L(ZF
—FF 110,485,000/ ) ERHER AL
8 % 14,000 (= ZF — 7 & : 42,0008
TORTTHERYH -

IHEEERERE

AEBAHNESBEEREF LHRAE
FRFELEMREES  FBWOT:

For the year
ended 31 December
HE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XE ZZ—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FET
At 1 January n—H—H 6,982 -
Addition NE 82,518 7,355
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation REMEEKEERZ
recognised in other comprehensive income BEATEYE(FE) 22,755 1)
Exchange realignment BE i, 3 B (6,142) (352)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=t—H 106,113 6,982
Unlisted equity investments outside BREGINZ I LTRAKRE
Hong Kong 14,664 6,982
Unlisted investment fund outside BREEINFELTRERS
Hong Kong 91,449 _
106,113 6,982

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets are

denominated in RMB.

ARHESREE REERAREIIE -
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18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss represents
investment in unlisted convertible preference shares with the following

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

18 BAFEFABRBZEHEE

AEBRAFEFABREZEBEEERE
LHARRELRZRE  HEOT

details:
For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—-RHLEFE
2016 2015
—2-Af —T-hF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET TET
At 1 January K—A—H - -
Addition NE 78,000 -
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised RERBER EEHATEEE
in profit or loss (1,120) -
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H 76,880 -
Unlisted convertible preference shares BRI FE LT AR E ST AR
outside Hong Kong 76,880 -

On 10 June 2016, the Group subscribed 7,443,326 Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Series C Preferred Shares”) of Cloopen
(Note 20). The consideration for the Convertible Series C Preferred
Shares subscribed by the Group was approximately HK$78,000,000
(equivalent to US$10,000,000).

RZZE—X"FAATH A&EERE
7,443,326 f% Cloopen 2 C 2 5 A #2 % {8 5t
BE(TCE AT iR 8 50 A% 1) (BT 3E20) ° &
SEMRBCRITHRELRIRENA
78,000,000 7T (& 7 10,000,000 %E7T) °
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FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The Group, as a holder of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares has:

i) an option to request Cloopen to redeem the Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares at the price equal to the greater of the issue price
with an 8% compound interest per annum return plus any accrued
but unpaid dividends or the fair value at the date of redemption after
the earliest of 10 June 2020 or the occurrence of other conditions as
provided for under the definitive subscription agreement; and

=

an option to convert the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares into
ordinary shares of Cloopen at the conversion price based on certain
conditions on the date of conversion as provided for under the
definitive subscription agreement.

The Convertible Series C Preferred Shares, together with the
abovementioned options, were designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss and recognised at fair values. The fair
values of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares were valued by an
independent valuer at the date of initial inception and on 31 December
20176.

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss represents
unlisted Convertible Series C Preferred Shares outside Hong Kong. The
carrying amount of the financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is denominated in USD.

Changes in fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded in ‘other loss” in the consolidated income statement.

18
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BAFEFABEZZEREE
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SBR(ERCRITHRBREEBRFTAA)

il

i

N>

BFMERKCloopen RZZEZFF AT
A4 SRR B PTA] AR B 11T
(UAREERE)RERASERTIBRSEZ
EBREBELOCRINATAKRELR : B8%E
BFENEEFEM B ERRE 2 E
IEIRERB#HATE: &

i) MR R BB RN 2 B2 A ER
BE TR RERER C R TRREL
&2 A Cloopen 2 i@ -

C R R & e B E ] - i R T 16 58 4
BATEFABR SREE  YRAVE
R CRIARRBRARZAHEHE
VEEARERARRRR -_T-RF+=
A=1+—RETHE-

AEERNFEFABREZEHEEREE
BINZIELET CRIIAT MBS - BAF
B ABREZEREBEERAEAETI
’fﬁ o

BATENABRZ SMAE? ATES
To e A s F A E SR B8 -
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SUBSIDIARIES 19 MEATF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December RZB-—RFEF+ZA=+—B FEWEBEX
2016: Al BEMT
Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
Particulars of ordinary shares held
of issued  shares directly by non-
share capital/ held by controlling
Place of incorporation Principal activities and registered the Group interests
Name and type of legal entity place of operation capital (%) (%)
r&E *ERELS
AR L BER BRfIRE/ ElBAZ ¥Rz
8 EERRER IRXBRERDY AMERFE  BERLA(%0)  EBREA (%)
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced The PRC, Provision of financial solutions, HK$ 100% -
Business Solutions Information limited liability company ~ services and related products in PRC 100,000,000
Technology Limited mE - ERAA ETERESRBRAE - R 100,000,007 T
IR EEERMARAA) REBER
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay The PRC, limited Provision of platform operation solutions HK$ 100% -
IT Limited* liability company in PRC 50,000,000
HERBERESRNERAR B8 RO EFERETREERANR 50,000,000/7C
Hangzhou PAX Electronic The PRC, limited Manufacturing and sales of electronic RMB 100% -
Technology Limited liability company power meters and solutions in PRC 53,400,000
HMNBRETRINERAR TE - ARAA EPELERBEEHEER ARE
eSS 53,400,000 7C
BEfTRIZAABRAR[SXF] ¥ The PRC, limited Provision of payment processing solutions RMB 80.04% 19.96%
liability company in PRC 199,900,000
TE - BRAT EPERHSNRSRERATR AR
199,900,000 7T

* BETTIISAMRAF (“SXF'), Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited and #2225
RENE BRITBR AR are the subsidiaries of EE TR EEHARA A (“Just-In

Mobile”). The Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Just-In Mobile.

Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the registered

owners of Just-In Mobile, the Company and the Company’s other subsidiary, the

Company controls Just-In Mobile by way of controlling more than one half of the

voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating policies and appointing or

removing the majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting

the majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition, such contractual

agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of Just-In Mobile to the Company.

As a result, they are presented as the consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

*

BT XHBERARSXF]) - HEm bRk
ERRMERAREGESBRBEERME
RARRERETRIRBERLA(EER
TNZMBRA - ARP UL BEEEEETTE
BOEERBE - RN REERHTEME
BA - KRAEARFEGHBRRMETLZ
ETROMH  ARAEREHERATAY
BRER ZHEMBREERE EREER
BBz RHEAKE  AERRZE BB SR
BRAZHUE  AMEHNSEST - 1o AE
RAOGETREERT AR I ERER TA
A Bl BEFIIEARRAZGAMER
Al o
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2016 is
HK$54,451,000 (2015: HK$29,116,000), of which HK$73,456,000
(2015: HK$46,550,000) is attributed to SXF and its subsidiaries (“SXF
Group”), which is considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$1,530,056,000 (2015:
HK$925,660,000) are held in China and are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

Summarised balance sheet:

B Yo B e B ik

19 MEBAT(E)

(@) EAXFERER

RoB—RE+-A=1+—B 2 IFERE
BB A 54,451,000 (2 —RF
29,116,000 7T ) + HE 73,456,000 %
JTT(ZZ—HF 46,550,000 8 7T ) &2 SXF
REKBAR(SXFER )ER - B
SHAEEBEAX -

HEEAIZRER BN ZHE
ZEIRH

B & MR 1,530,056,0007% 7T(=
T —H 4 925,660,000/ 7T ) JhEHE
BFAEUTSRREMIINEES AR - HEE
HAMNEE HERRERZEE D E A
FEEBEBIE) ZRH °

HHEAR R s Z W ]2 B
NI BEHAREN S BERN T
R MEBRRZHEERME -

BERERME

SXF Group
SXF&H
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
“E-R"E C—T-hRF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET
Non-current B
Assets EE 231,424 164,383
Current e
Assets BE 1,543,446 941,848
Liabilities afE (1,406,854) (873,015)
Net assets EEFE 368,016 233,216
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 MEAR(E)
(a) Material non-controlling interest (continued) @ ERFEERERS(E)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material HHEEAIERER B L AZH
non-controlling interests (continued) BEFBZ(8)
Summarised income statement: WaERBE
SXF Group
SXFEE

For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TET
Revenue WA 1,031,203 494,182
Profit before income tax BRFTS BRI R A 174,531 61,829
Profit for the year FRREN 155,388 57,463
Other comprehensive loss Hip2HEEE (20,588) (12,642)
Total comprehensive income e G ] 134,800 44,821

Total comprehensive income attributable IR s
to non-controlling interests EhEEK=EERE 26,906 8,946
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 KMEBAR(E)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (continued) @ ERFFIZERER(E)
HEEA IR IERZ B L E]ZE
BEHEZ(E)
REeERERME

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material

non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarised cash flows statement:

SXF Group
SXF&H
For the year
ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015
—F-"% ZT-1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCZRERE
Cash generated from operations ReEmzRE 850,431 538,345
Income tax paid BXAEH 9,779) -
Cash generated from operating activities REXBMEERS 840,652 538,345
Cash flows from investing activities KEFHZRETE (151,269) (149,631)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents REeRBESEY 2 EMEHE 689,383 388,714
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNHReRREEEY
of the year 925,700 588,916
Exchange loss on cash and RekReEEYMERLER
cash equivalents (85,008) (51,930)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRAECEEY
at end of the year 1,530,075 925,700

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.

NEBEHRARERNRRIBEEHE S8 -
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20
EQUITY METHOD

The balances recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as

follows:

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

20 LDESZEARZEE

REREERRRERZEHOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-R"E —T-hRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Associated companies: 5?%*’2\ Al
- PAX Global (Note (a)) BERK(HE @) 1,663,250 1,525,040

The amounts of share of results recognised in the consolidated income R ENERERNEEZEHSHNT
statement are as follows:
For the year
ended 31 December
BETZA=1T—HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XE —h%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTART FHET
Associated companies: kNS
- PAX Global (Note (a)) —BEERN(ME @) 198,992 199,012
Joint venture: BEdE
- Cloopen (Note (b)) —Cloopen (FfizE (b)) - (794)
198,992 198,218
The amount of gain/(loss) on dilution of interest recognised in the RigA M ERERz ESHE R (BE)
consolidated income statement are as follows: SREAOT -

For the year
ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015
-~ ZT-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Associated companies: BERA]
- PAX Global (Note (a)) — 8 &R (M () 826 (8,442)
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@) Investment in PAX Global

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at 31
December 2016, which, in the opinion of the directors, is material
to the Group — PAX Global. PAX Global has share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group; its
principal places of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong and the

United States.

Name

=k

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
ok 11 B A7 3t B R
EEERER

Particular of issued
share capital

BRITRAFE

B Yo B e B ik

20 LRERZEARZBRE (B)

@ REERRZRE
TXEIR-_Z—RF+_A=1T—HE
ERREAREMEBERNZASEB 2
RA-AERY - AERMAFHAKE
ERFBENEBEBR BN EER
EEWEHATE  BBREE -

31 December 2016

—E—-X"E+=ZA=1+—H

PAX Global (Note i)

BERR(MED

31 December 2015

—E-af+=-HA=1+—H

PAX Global (Note i)

BERR(MED

Bermuda, limited
liability company

BRE  ARAT

Bermuda, limited
liability company

BRE  ARAT

1,107,874,000
ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each

1,107,874,000 &
FREEO1AT
2 Eimk

1,112,014,000
ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each
1,112,014,000 &
FREEO.1ET
Z B

Nature of Effective Measurement
relationship Interest held method
sz

BEME ERER FTERE
Note 33 32.86% Equity
P3E33 32.86% T
Note 33 32.73% Equity
P3E33 32.73% T
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 URERZEAERZERE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@) Investment in PAX Global (continued)

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff of PAX
Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
PAX Global became an associated company of the Group. On the
date when control ceased, the Group’s retained interest in PAX
Global was fair valued, and this give rise to the difference between
the carrying value of investment in an associated company of the
Group and its share of net assets value of PAX Global.

@QRBEERRZREE)

RZZE—ZF+-F-+H BRELEE
DHEBREBRRMBL LT EEIR
o BERNNALEBRZHBERT - R
EIEEGEER  AEEREERKRY
ZREFUATE;E  EBNAEEBE
NAZKE FAEEENEERKEE
FEMLHELRAEE -

For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XRE ZZ-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FiET
At 1 January w—A—H 1,525,040 1,370,383
Share of profit JEAE & A 198,992 199,012
Share of other comprehensive loss EhEMEEERE (41,132) (33,373)
Share of other reserves FE(E E 1,248 4,828
Dilution of interest (Note ii) s (M EEi) 942 (8,530)
Dividend received R E (21,840) (7,280)
At 31 December WTZH=1—H 1,663,250 1,525,040

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the Group's interest in
PAX Global, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, was HK$1,870,960,000 (2015: HK$2,908,360,000) and
the carrying amount of the Group'’s interest was HK$1,663,250,000
(2015: HK$1,525,040,000). The fair value is based on the current
price in an active market as at balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's interest in PAX Global was
32.86% (2015: 32.73%).

R-ZB-—RE+-A=1+—0 A£ERH
BERIK(EEBHAERIMERAR L
M) ZHEFZAFEA,870,960,0007 7T
(ZZ—F4F :2,908,360,00087T) * &K
SEERZREERT,663,250,000 %8 T
(ZZE—A%F :1,525,040,000/87T) ° 2
FEDNENEEAZERMSREERE
E °

RZE—RNE+-A=+—0 Kx&E

iﬁ_

REBBRRZEREH32.86%(ZF—H
F:32.73%) °
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@ Investment in PAX Global (continued)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in
PAX Global.

Note i

Note ii:

Note iii:

PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and sales
of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment Terminals”)
products, provision of payment solutions services and maintenance

services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals solution business”).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain employees of PAX
Global exercised their share options granted pursuant to a share option
scheme set up on 1 December 2010. A gain on dilution of interest
in an associated company of HK$826,000 (2015: loss on dilution of
interest of HK$8,442,000) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, including release of reserve debited to the consolidated
income statement of HK$116,000 (2015: credited to the consolidated
income statement of HK$88,000. The Group’s interest in PAX Global
decreased from 32.73% to 32.56% accordingly).

During the year, PAX Global repurchased a total of 10,000,000 ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Such repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled during the year. The Group’s
interest in PAX Global increased from 32.56% to 32.86% accordingly.

20 LRERZEARZBRE (B)

@QRBEERRZREE)
BEAMASER AR EHE A

BE-
Hiizi -

WiEtii -

it i -

BERHIENFHAERHEET
INHEHR(EFINHEHDE
m ARREIAERATRERSE R
e MR (FE T 7 T 0 A% i i e
LES K

BHET—R"F+ZA=1+—HI
FE BERRETEEAFERE
R-E-TE+-A—-BRIZE
BREFEBEL  BERE R —H
52 A B 2w #8105 826,000
BL(ZZ—0F: BB EFR
8,442,0008 70 ) ER AW E R
R RERBENRGEERERL
116,000 T(ZF—HF : &
ANER& W & 2 [#15 88,000 8 7T ©
At AEERBEERKZERH
32.73% K ZE32.56% °)

ER BERREERBARSM
AR A FERE 10,000,000 (% &
AR EERRRNERERFN
e At AEERBERRZ
R 32.56% 8% 32.86% °



148 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok £ S 5 0 % B ik

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(@) Investment in PAX Global (continued)
Extracted financial information set out below are the summarised
consolidated financial information of PAX Global which is accounted
for using the equity method.

20 LARERZEARZRE (B)

@QRBEERRZREE)
TXAE M BHERRE RUEREAR
ZAERMGAPHENME -

As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RE C—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHETT
Current RE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 2,207,205 2,144,312
Other current assets (excluding cash) HimsEE(TaERD) 2,013,214 1,876,273
Total current assets TEVBEME 4,220,419 4,020,585
Trade Payables JERTERRR (662,485) (710,529)
Other payables and accurals Hoth fE A % FE 5T R0 (226,791) (231,356)
Taxation payable JERIBEIE (36,141) (45,658)
Total liabilities BEeHE (925,417) (987,543)
Non-current R
Assets BE 212,644 59,614
Liabilities BE (6,363) (2,057)
Net assets BESE 3,501,283 3,090,599
For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RFE ZT—0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Revenue WA 2,914,842 2,870,794
Profit for the year F A% 603,434 620,286
Other comprehensive loss Hib2mEE (126,208) (101,930)
Total comprehensive income ZHENEEAEE 477,226 518,356
Dividends received from the associated company LEAI-INGIL § A = 21,840 7,280
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 BLREHRZEZARZERE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) Investment in Cloopen

(b) A Cloopen 2 & &

Set out below is an associated company (2015: joint venture) of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 - Cloopen. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying value of Cloopen is nil which is not considered
as material to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Cloopen has share capital consisting of class A ordinary share, class
B ordinary share, series A convertible preferred shares, series B
convertible preferred shares and series C convertible preferred shares.

On 10 June 2016, Cloopen issued 27,862,642 ordinary shares to an
existing shareholder. Immediately subsequent thereto, Cloopen further
issued 7,443,326 Convertible Series C Preferred Shares to a subsidiary
of the Group and another 37,216,630 Convertible Series C Preferred
Shares to certain other investors (the “Series C Transaction”). Upon
completion of the Series C Transaction, the Group's effective interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on all issued and
outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which are held by the Group,
reduced from 67.5% to 47.8%. The Group also ceased to have joint
control over Cloopen, and Cloopen became an associated company
of the Group subsequent to the Series C Transaction.

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to provide
funding relating to the Group’s interest in Cloopen.

TXHEHIR-_ZE-—RF+_A=+—H
REE 2B & N7 —Cloopen (ZE—H
F:RE80E) RZE-—RFE+ZH
=+—H ' Cloopen ZEEHEERT + A
SEEEMBIMETEERX © Cloopen
BEZBRABARLER BRLTER -
AR AR E A% - BRI AR E 5%
B K C 551 Al AR 8 S AR B AK o

RZZE—REXATH " Cloopen—%
RERERET27,862,642 R FBIR - B
BEE1Z » Cloopen BRIAEE—FEMEA
A3177,443,326 B K51 AT A8 SR AR K
METEMREEHETRINI7,216,630
R CZFIBREER(ICRINIRZS]) -
CRIIXGTHiE - BAKEMBHEMA
Cloopen B # 1T RETHEIINE BIGTE -
KEER Cloopen LAWK 2 BB m B
67.5% MEA47.8% - CRIIZ Sk - K%
B 75T E#E Cloopen 2 X EE I - M
Cloopen KR AREE 7 B & R 7]

BEGRAREER Cloopen 2 EmIZHRES
ZHARBERAIE -
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20

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Investment in Cloopen (continued)
Movement of the share of the interest in Cloopen as follow:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

20 LARERZEARZRE (B)

(b) A Cloopen 2 &R & (4&)
&1 Cloopen 2 #Ea ZE) IR T -

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

2016 2015

—2-Af —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEr FET

At 1 January K—A—H - 2,584
Share of loss (Note i) {5 &8 (P i) - (794)
Share of other comprehensive loss (Note i) JEAG Eofh 2 T B 18 (P 5T i) - (3,104)
Share of other reserve FEhE b - 1,314

At 31 December (Note ii)

W+ A=+—8 (i)

Note i:

Note ii:

Share of loss and other comprehensive loss was determined based on
the effective interest of issued ordinary shares of Cloopen which were
held by the Group.

The interest in Cloopen was initially measured at fair value. The
carrying amount was increased or decreased to recognise the Group's
share of the profits or loss and movements in other comprehensive
income or loss of the interest in Cloopen to the extent the carrying
amount of the interest in Cloopen reduced to nil due to losses, after
the initial recognition. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's share of
loss of Cloopen exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen,
there are no overall financial impact on the consolidated income
statement from the investment for the current year. As at 31 December
2016, the unrecognised share of loss of the interest in Cloopen is
HK$134,079,000 (2015: HK$45,115,000).

Meti -

Matii -

EEEBIEMZABENEAS
BH45 2 Cloopen B BT L@ 2
BERERAE -

A Cloopen 2 # % ¥ ## # A FE
£ o EYRTERE WM Cloopen Z
EnsEEERBERES  BE
1814 A FE 7< & B & 15 7 Cloopen 2
BazBaHhBNREMEZHEEK
mAEEEHMEME D B
—E-RXE+-A=+-R &
S B EECloopenz FEBBHE
R Cloopen & ik 2 # 4+ % IBIR
BRAFETEHGEEKNERERE
EUBTE -R-T—R"FT+=A
=+—H  RERBEER Cloopen
W% 2 E18 5134,079,00078 7T
(ZZ—HF : 45,115,000 %7T) ©
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INVENTORIES 21 B&
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XRE ZZ-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Raw materials R R 47,275 35,213
Work-in-progress EEm 2,616 2,224
Finished goods BURK T 25,081 15,676
74,972 53,113

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$234,825,000 (2015: HK$203,931,000), which
included write-back of provision for inventories of HK$1,385,000 (2015:
provision for inventories of HK$5,012,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable value amounted
to approximately HK$34,176,000 (2015: HK$37,690,000) as at 31
December 2016. Full provision has been made with regard to these
balances.

BREAIRGFABEERNAZTEK
K 3#£234,825,00008 L= T — L F:
203,931,000 L) BREGFE B D& E
1,385,000 L(ZE—HF: FERE
5,012,000/87T) °

R-ZE—XF+ZA=+—8 RUZHF
EBHREZFEBELE34,176,0008 T(=
T—F4F :37,690,000/87T)  WERKE
BEREL 2 BURE -
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES FROM 22 FEWERFREWERE - X SH

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND BEEMAFREFR 2ERRER
OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS HttEWRIE - BARERRE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8
2016 2015

—E-RE C—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET
Current portion D
Trade receivables (Note (a)) R 5 B 3 (PR3 (a)) 247,647 246,527
Bills receivables (Note (b)) [ =45 (PHRE (b)) 1,284 7,707
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (Note (c)) & : FEUGRIERER #E (M5 (0) (5,397) (18,645)
243,534 235,589
Receivables from payment processing solutions XX GERIBRRT RE
business (Note (d)) 2 MR IR (B aE (d)) - 115,642
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables: TBRIA -« e AR GRIE
Prepayments R KA 15,086 10,931
Deposits we 11,193 12,640
Others Hit 11,761 16,994
38,040 40,565
281,574 391,796
Non-current portion FEENRER
Long-term deposits and prepayments R RENFIR 3434 4,318

Total At 285,008 396,114
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES FROM 22 FEWERFREWERE - X SH

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND BIRMRT R 2 BRRER
OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS HihEWRIE - AARERRSE
(continued) (%)

The carrying amounts are approximately their fair values. The carrying REEREQFEESR - BUESRERE
amounts of the trade and bills receivables, receivables from payment B INRGEERRTRERZEKK
processing solutions business, other receivables, prepayments and H - Bl FE  BNRIEREE ALK
deposits and long-term deposits and prepayments are denominated in HEe RENFIEZREBETI A TIIEET
the following currencies: 18

As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2016 2015
—B-R"F —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET  FER
HK$ BT 9,705 2,785
RMB AR® 273,493 270,636
JPY A 603 119,433
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) RPIEE (R ]) 1,207 3,260
285,008 396,114
Note: Bt -
(@) Trade receivables (@) BEWERN
The Group's credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180 days. The ageing REBHRTEFEH/AZEESHHOIZE1808
analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on invoice date was as follows: TE - TERFZAMEL ZEURRRER D
T
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t-AH
2016 2015
= “B-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
Current to 90 days ENERZE 90 A 170,730 170,302
91 to 180 days 912180 H 18,925 7,854
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 23,981 17,248
Over 365 days 365 HIAE 34,011 51,123
247,647 246,527
As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables included retention money receivables R-E—A"E+-B=+—0 ElLEZ4a
of HK$52,230,000 (2015: HK$56,293,000), which represents approximately 10% R ES 52,230,000 T (ZE—RE
to 20% (2015: same) of the relevant contract sum granted to certain customers in 56,293,000 ) AR TEFTHEEF B
the PRC that have a retention period of normally one year. As at 31 December AMZTEL10% 2 20%(—E—F4E : H8E)
2016, the retention money receivables aged over 365 days primarily based on FEmEy@EHRR—SA—F  R-T—X
invoice date amounted to HK$25,806,000 (2015: HK$37,398,000). F+-—B=+—H IERFESAHHERR

#8365 BIA L2 EUIRES £25,806,000 %
TT(=F—FR%F :37,398,000/87T) °
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES FROM
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(continued)

Note: (continued)
(a) Trade receivables (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$39,444,000 (2015:
HK$36,243,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these

trade receivables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

22 BURERRERERR XIX5
BEBRARER 2 BWRER
HEWARIER ANRERRS
(%)
it - ()

() R ()

BRERREZRIGES AT EREE
BREZXGLHIBIEF - ERNBER
B ABNEFPZEEERAYLERE
b EUFEERDA 2HEY - KEEE
BRI FERASHERIERNEER - TEE
T EREMZERBFRERBEERR -

RZF-—R"F+-A=1t—-0 BRER
39,444,000/ 7T(= F — L F : 36,243,000
B BHERRE - TRRERBHEL
ZHEREEFIREDTIT :

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—~H
2016 2015
—E-RE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL
Current to 90 days HEZE 90 A - -
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 7,726 1,479
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 11,308 6,651
Over 365 days 365 ML 20,410 28,113

39,444 36,243
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES FROM
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(continued)

Note: (continued)
(b) Bills receivables

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates within six

months.

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

B Yo B e B ik

22 BURERRERERE XIX5
BEBRARER 2 BWRER
HEWARIER ANRERRS
(%)
it - ()

(b) BRRE

HEREINBAR/IRANER ZRITARLR
o

TEERKEEZHBERMT :

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—-8
2016 2015
—EBE-RE —E-AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRT
Falling within 90 days 90 HA 1,284 1,216
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91E180HA - 6,491
1,284 7,707

(c) Provision for impairment of receivables

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$5,397,000 (2015:
HK$18,645,000) were impaired. These impaired receivables mainly relate
to individual customers who are delinquent in payment. The ageing of these

receivables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

(o) BYFHRRERE

RZE—RET-A=Z1+—8 BEREX
5,397,000/ ;t(= % — F 4 : 18,645,000 5
T)BRME - ZERRERKREEZEER
HBRFBZRFEH - FERBZAMEL
ZERYGRERER AT -

As at 31 December

Wt=ZA=+—-H
2016 2015
ZE-XE —T-hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
91 to 180 days 91%£180H - -
181 to 365 days 1812365 H - -
Over 365 days 365 HIA F 5,397 18,645

5,397 18,645
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES FROM 22 FEWERFREWERE - X SH

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND BIRMRT R 2 BRRER
OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS HihEWRIE - AARERRSE
(continued) (%)
Note: (continued) Mzt - ()
(c) Provision for impairment of receivables (continued) () BRI ERE(E)

Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows: ERFERERBLEMT -

For the year
ended 31 December
BET-A=+—HLEFE

2016 2015
= A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
At 1 January ®n—A—H 18,645 19,187
Write-back of provision for impairment of EUERFORERBRED
trade receivables, net (3,507) -
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible AN AT U B SRIE T 6 A M 86 2 PR IR (9,360) -
Exchange realignment 0 5 (381) (542)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 5,397 18,645
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired Fot S5 2 FEMBR 30 R At U FOR L R B R
assets. REEE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of REEEMAES SARERRT LS
each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral FEMEUR 2 R EME - AREY A L ER
as security. miERER -
(d) Receivables from payment processing solutions business (d) AR ZEEBRT REH 2 BRHKE
This balance mainly represents receivables arising from the payment processing ARERIREXNRIRRBRRAT RRBE
solutions business. 2 WA -
For processing payments on behalf of merchants, the amounts are usually become ARRBFUMZRZREMNR - FHELE—
collectible by the Group from the financial institutions once the underlying BRBF 2 AR 5 & R B AR B Al A
transactions of the merchants had been acknowledged by the relevant financial SRR AER S RIS R -
institutions.
As at 31 December 2015, balance is aged below 90 days and is denominated in RZZ-RAF+-A=+—B BERZERE

JPY. %90 B LA BEFIE -
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SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 23 EHIRITER
Short-term bank deposits of HK$18,388,000 (2015: HK$23,455,000) 5 ER 1717 518,388,000 (=T — &
represented bank deposits of the Group with original maturities over % 123,455,000 7T ) iE RS E R EN EE
three months which are placed as guaranteed deposits for bills payables MiFERERERREINMBER=EANUE
and are denominated in RMB. ZBITER - WAAREFIE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 BERBAETEEY
As at 31 December
W+t=ZA=+—-H
2016 2015
—2-Af —T-h#F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cash at bank and on hand ROGFRAEFERS 1,428,187 768,795
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities of R EIRITER
less than three months) (REZHBELR=MEA) 1,298,546 1,523,492
2,726,733 2,292,287

Included in short-term bank deposits were HK$827,107,000 (2015:
HK$777,239,000) bank deposits with original maturities within three
months and effective interest rate of 1.8% (2015: 2.8%) which are
placed as guaranteed deposits for bills payables, tenders or deposits
designated for settlement of certain payables in relation to the payment
processing solutions business and are denominated in RMB. The
remaining balance of HK$471,439,000 (2015: HK$746,253,000) were
fixed bank deposits with effective interest rate of 1.1% (2015: 1.3%) and
average maturity day of 83 days (2015: 54 days).

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately HK$2,009,531,000
(2015: HK$1,442,973,000) are kept in the bank accounts opened with
banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign
exchange control.

55 H IR 17 7 A 4 827,107,000 L(— T
—HF 777,239,000 0 ) iEREE G E
NEEMFERERS  REZKABEIN
RIEBRBIAFRER S TRMNTEES
BEHEGR2BTER  ZEROIFRR
BRHBEAZEANARERFERAE1.8%
(ZE—FF:2.8%) TUAREE-
BT 45 52471,439,0008 T(ZE— R &
746,253,000 8 70) BETERITER - EEF
RE11%(ZF—AF 1 1.3%) R FHEH
BA83R(ZZE—HRE:548)

ANEE 2 EEH#2,009,531,0008 L (—F
—F4F :1,442,973,00087T)  HIERRAE
HEZBTHAYZRITESFA  MABES
ZETZBISNEEH] o
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 24

25

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RERRESEEWE)
Re RS SEMEA T EEHE

As at 31 December

Wt+t=-A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XE ZT-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
HK$ BT 468,564 522,694
RMB AR 1,977,699 1,402,958
us$ T 273,813 271,922
JPY H 252 87,891
MOP BPHE 6,405 6,822
2,726,733 2,292,287

SHARE CAPITAL

25

L&

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each
FREE0.0025 8 T2 EER

No. of shares HK$’000
R & FTER
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, R-E—HF—HA—H"
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 —E-RE+ZA=+—8H"
—E-RE-H-Ak
- F+ZA=1+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, R-E—HF—HA—H"
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 “E-RE+ZA=+—8"
- F-A—HBK
—E-R"F+ZA=1+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942
Note: K
Share options of the Company rREzERE

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose

of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees in order to strive for future

developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme

include the Group’s full-time employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors.

The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date. The

share option was never granted.

AAREE-—B-T——FHRESEI([ZE
8)) 5ERS BERABES B ZER - B
AEBRARBRRERES - L8R AKREHE
ERRASEZERERARIITRFMTES -
FAER B ——FWNA T NBER - BRIEZE
B RTBUBRER] - BRI % B st TR
BB BRBAER o R HAERREAHE -
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26 RESERVES 26 &
(@) Group @ mEHE
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange Retained
premium (Note (i) reserves reserve earnings Total
E4ER
R EE (M) HitRE ERRE REEA CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TER TER TERT TERT
At1 January 2016 RoE—RE—A—H 1,063,153 168434 493,501 74935 1,501,863 3,301,886
Profit for the year FRHF - - - - 283,964 283,964
Exchange differences arising on BEEINTE D RIS BRE
translation of the financial EFEREE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (44,563) - (44,563)
Share of other comprehensive loss of G AR AR ZRE 2
investments accounted Hih2EEE(F20)
for using the equity method (Note 20)
- exchange differences arising on —REENIB AT A BRE
translation of the financial FEEZELER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (41,132) - (41,132)
Release of reserve upon dilution of ~ LAREREARRZ —IEIRE
interest in an investment accounted  AEZEHRIED 2
for using the equity method (Note 20) & ([ &% 20)
- exchange differences arising on —BREBINHEAR
translation of the financial HBEBRREEZ
statements of foreign subsidiaries R ERR - - - 116 - 116
Fair value gains on revaluation EfTHEESREEY
of available-for-sale financial AEEKEE17)
assets (Note 17) - - 22,755 - - 22,755
Share of other reserves of an R AR EAR —BIRE
investment accounted for Z H A (3 20)
using the equity method (Note 20) - - 1,248 - - 1,248
At 31 December 2016 WoB—XET-A=+—0 1,063,153 168434 517504  (10,644) 1,785,827 3,524,274
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26 RESERVES (continued) 26 f#E(E)
(@) Group (continued) (@) KB (%)
Contributed
Share surplus Other  Exchange Retained
premium (Note (i) reserves reserve earnings Total
ERRH
R E (k) EftfEE ERLRE REEN Ch

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TRL TR TR

At 1 January 2015 RZZ—-h%—A—H 1,063,153 168,434 487,380 148,095 1,318,377 3,185,439
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 183486 183,486
Exchange differences arising on BEBINTE L RRBRE
translation of the financial EEZERER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (36,595) - (36,595)
Share of other comprehensive loss of G AR AR ZRE 2
investments accounted Efy 2 EEE (K 20)
for using the equity method (Note 20)
- exchange differences arising on —REENIBATABRE
translation of the financial FEEERZSE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (36,477) - (36,477)

Release of reserve upon dilution of ~ LAREREARRZ —IEIRE
interest in an investment accounted 1R EE R T 2
for using the equity method (Note 20) & ([ & 20)

- exchange differences arising on —BREEBIEAR
translation of the financial HBEBRREEZ
statements of foreign subsidiaries BN ERR - - - (88) - (88)
Fair value loss on revaluation of B -EHHESREEY
an available-for-sale financial ATEEB(E17)
asset (Note 17) - - 21 - - (21)
Share of other reserves of investments  JE{EDAEREABR 2 & 2
accounted for using the HEfty B (Fi13120)
equity method (Note 20) - - 6,142 - = 6,142

At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-A=1—H 1,063,153 168,434 493,501 74,935 1,501,863 3,301,886
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26 RESERVES (continued)

(@ Group (continued)

Notes:

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account of Hi Sun
Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in the circular to the
shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the nominal value of the

Company's shares issued in exchange thereof.

(i) Other reserves mainly represents the difference between the net proceeds from
issuance of convertible preference shares of subsidiaries upon their conversion
into ordinary shares of the Company in prior years and the reserves arising from

the granting and exercising of employees” incentive programme of a subsidiary.

(iii) PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies” net profit to a
reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capital.
The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the
companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the companies’ registered capital. As at 31 December 2016, retained earnings
comprise of statutory reserve fund amounting to HK$64,921,000 (2015:
HK$49,064,000).

B Yo B e B ik

() AREZEBABERARHERERAF

((EEERDERFEAHR-_TT—F
NANBZEBRME  RER_TT—F
TAtLRETZEESATEA DM
WiEzmEERz ERRmEERB D EE
B SARARERBZERTROEE
ZER

(i) Rt BT ERNATFREBRAAR

AL BREAETHBRR THRRE LR
ZHERBEFEEARE R TE-—AMEL
Al EEREBMEL  HEZEE -

([iFBEARINEBRRLEH Z210%5 EE

FEe BEZzBReEIAREME
Kz50% ZERESCEBE RILE
FURREHEZTERIEMRAA 2
MER - EZEELSEEEFRRAG
MERZ255%KFE RZE-RE+Z
A=+-—0 RERNEEEERKESE
64,921,000 L(ZE—HF : 49,064,000
oy
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27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 27 ENERIRENERE  ZHAXSH

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND BEBRAREK 2EARE -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS HihEAREREFTFIE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8
2016 2015

—E-RE ZE—RF
HK$/000 HK$'000

FET FAT
Trade payables (Note (a)) AR (M EE (2) 230,566 165,685
Bills payables (Note (b)) FEATER 1R (3T (b)) 35,704 35,538
266,270 201,223

Payables for payment processing solutions XNRGBERRFTRER
business (Note (c)) Z R RIA (M EE (c)) 787,667 472,912
Other payables and accruals (Note (d)) HoAth JE A 5008 R AT OB (3 (d)) 646,400 467,030

1,700,337 1,141,165

Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing solutions EREFNENEE SNRIBRERRHRER
business and other payables and accruals are denominated in the 7 JERTFIE « H i B 2B I B FUBIRIA T &%

following currencies: I :
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+-H

2016 2015
—E-RE ZE—RF
HK$/000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 32,420 27,088
RMB AR 1,666,368 1,025,962
JPY H 242 85,477
MOP Ak 1,307 2,638

1,700,337 1,141,165
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27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

Note:
(a) Trade payables

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the ageing analysis of the trade payables

primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

27
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BNRRREMNRE XI5
BEMARTRRE 2BENRE
Hitb AR R ERTRE ()

Wit -

() BB ERAK
RIB-RER-E-LF+-A=+—H"
TERBZAMEL 2 BARFER DTN
T

As at 31 December

W+=ZA=+-H
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET
Current to 90 days Bl Z90H 177,059 104,471
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 33,503 24,173
181 to 365 days 18123650 8,162 21,172
Over 365 days 365 HAA L 11,842 15,869
230,566 165,685

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

(b) Bills payables

The balance represents bank acceptance notes:

BHERRTZEERNTFOE180 A2 -

(b) ERHRE

ERERIERITARTE

As at 31 December

BW+=R=+-H
2016 2015
“E-RE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FEr
Due within 90 days 90 AW ZIH 19,161 20,987
Due within 91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 HREIE 16,543 14,551

35,704

35,538
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27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 27
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS AND
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c) Payables for payment processing solutions business

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing

solutions business. The amounts are generally due for settlement within 30 days

and are denominated in the following currencies:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BANRRREMNRE XI5
BEMARTRRE 2BENRE
Hitb AR R ERTRE ()

Hi - (1)

() INXZRERRARER 2 BAHE
BRGSRERINRIREBRAT REBEN
BPZHE - BHSE-—RN30 ANETHE
RERATE®IE -

As at 31 December

M+=A=+-A
2016 2015
= TR
HK$/000 HK$'000
TERT THT
RMB AR 787,667 388,066
JPY A - 84,846
787,667 472,912

(d) Other payables and accruals

(d) BN RUER B RE

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-nfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations FEET B TR IR RS HR 162,675 136,817
Deposits and receipt in advance e KR WERFOR 332,501 148,901
Others Hity 151,224 181,312

646,400 467,030
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal

authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

B Yo B e B ik

28 JRIEFTSH
EAARARNMTENBREHREER
RERRREEY  BECHERYRA—
BB - BT RSB AERAEE
1S - ST

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RE ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months NEA%ETREZELREEE (361) (390)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months NEARBNZELHEEE 48 160
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months NEABENZELEREAR 518 362
Deferred tax liabilities — net BLEHBEE-F8 205 132

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting
of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as

follows:

FX - BRRARAREER  EHREREH
Al REREEERBEEEHINT

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIHE B
2016 2015
—E-RE “E-1F
Accelerated Revaluation Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of intangible tax of intangible
depreciation assets Total depreciation assets Total
ilf:d i3 il &
WERE AEEfR ait  WEFE AEEM At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At1 January m—HA—H 151 371 522 9 440 449
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RNBAR - 99 99 - - .
(Credited)/charged to the BRANER
consolidated income statement (GtA)/Hk (15) (13) (28) 142 (48) 94
Exchange realignment 5 A - 27) (27) - 21 21
At31 December Rt-A=1+—H 136 430 566 151 371 522
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28

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEFREH ()

Deferred tax assets EERBEE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-Af —T-4%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
At 1 January Rn—H—H (390) (262)
Charged/(credited) to the consolidated income statement B &AM R MK/ (FFA) 15 (142)
Exchange realignment RS 14 14
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H (361) (390)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income amounted to HK$400,406,000 (2015: HK$611,538,000). These
tax losses have no expiry date except that HK$167,687,000 will expire
from 2017 to 2021 (2015: HK$290,678,000 will expire from 2016 to
2020). The potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses
which have not been recognised amounted to HK$73,821,000 (2015:
HK$110,867,000).

As at 31 December 2016, deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the withholding
tax that would be payable on unremitted earnings of certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Group amounting to approximately HK$44,552,000
(2015: HK$30,374,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RIETR A& = TH A FE AR TR B )55 A Al AL
FRAGRERT AN ZEMBAEE 2
MEBEEER - R-_T— X F+-A
=+—H AEEBEEUIEEARER
A 2 R MR T 1B &5 18 /400,406,000
B (ZE—HF :611,538,000/8
JL) ° 167,687,000 TN T —+
FET-—FHEER (Z2—1F :
290,678,000 TR _E—"FE2-_FT
SFREEm) S ZERBEBELERE
MAH - ARZENEBHRERBLER
IRIEEEA73,821,00087 (ZE—H
£ :110,867,000/67T) °

R-Z—RE+-A=1+—8 dRAE
Eorfl TR =R RE TR ES
AR TR RARKER - MEREARE
BEETHENBRARAERF ZEMNTE
MHi4944,552,00087C (ZE—HF
30,374,000/870) RERE MIEHREIEL IR
AR TRAA o
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29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 29 @ZEBE&RERME

STATEMENT

(@ FRATEBANEN RELRMEREF
Bz Yk

(@ Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

generated from operations

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=t—-HLHEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —hf
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Profit before income tax BR AT S B B0E 7 332,141 196,269
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRENE 94,131 54,248
Depreciation of investment properties REMFERE 206 172
Amortisation of leasehold land MHE 983 995
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 10,281 10,527
Share of results of investments accounted B AR EARZ
for using the equity method REXE (198,992) (198,218)
Fair value loss on a financial asset at RERERZ
fair value through profit or loss BfATEERE 1,120 -
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BB L&A
plant and equipment A 754 140
(Write-back of provision)/provision (BERE),/ FE
for inventories (1,385) 5,012
Write-back of provision for impairment of FE M AR TR B B BB B B 3 AR
trade receivables, net (3,507) -
(Gain)/loss on dilution of interest in an investment l«/{% WEAR —BIREER
accounted for using the equity method s () /BA (826) 8,442
Interest income FEBA (19,704) (15,783)
Operating profit before working capital changes & Lﬁ/\“ A A 2 12 215,202 61,804
Increase in inventories =8l (24,744) (7,456)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables, )’EHWE AR EWEE - TR
receivables from payment processing J%Iiﬁ¢/?%ﬁm¥f5‘ZVELIQFA
solutions business and other receivables, LA B E A JE U 3ROE
prepayments and deposits BNRER RS (8 ﬂﬂ)/f)ﬁjw\ (32,412) 87,631
Increase /(decrease) in amounts due from FEBARE R EAN IR
investments accounted for RE 2 FEEM,/ ()
using the equity method (3,270) 11,166
Increase in amount due to an investment ERAEREARZ
accounted for using the equity methed & 2 FRIAL 17,056 -
Increase in trade and bills payables, ENERARENRE XNRZ5
payables for payment processing solutions BRIBMAT REB 2 ERNRIELAR
business and other payables and accruals HoAh A FRI8 % FE AT RR IR 1E N 745,931 328,115
Cash generated from operations KEMSHRE 917,763 481,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 29
STATEMENT (continued)

(b)In the cash flow statements, proceeds from sale of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

REREREBRMEE)

bREERERT  HEWE  BE
RREERERSE

For the year
ended 31 December
BEt-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE CZ—T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FET
Net book amount (Note 14) REFE(FIFE14) 1,208 911
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BE L&A
plant and equipment B8 (754) (140)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BE R
plant and equipment RGN 454 771
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 HARAE

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee agreement
with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Performance Guarantee Agreement, the Company agreed to provide
the customer with a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual
performance of a subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a
modernisation project with not more than HK$60,000,000 (2015: same)
and claims of infringement of third party’s intellectual property right. As
at 31 December 2016, the Company does not recognise any liability in
relation to the Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of the
Company consider the possibility of reimbursement is not probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent liability
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

RZZE—HF  AARE-FZEPIIULRR
ERrmE(IRBERBZE] - BRBERFE
RpZE - ARRRERAEE—HNEBAR
RERNBAEMEE RUERBEER m
ZEBPRMETZ 160,000,000 T(ZF
—RF BRI ZERRELE=ZFHNHE
BZEBER - W_E—R"F+-A=1+—8H"
HRARRESRARLEE 2T ET
B MARBVERREEREERBR
EREE -

BREXHEEN R-T-RER-_ZT—
FT-_A=1—R AREYEEFAEAK
REE -
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31 COMMITMENTS 31 A&iE
(a) Operating lease commitments () BMEFHERIE
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had future aggregate RIB-—RERZZ-AF+A=+—
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as B AEERTAHHESEHOETZR
follows: REBEHEMNTEROT
Land and buildings
T REF
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t—-8
2016 2015
—E-RE CZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Not later than one year THEB—F 17,248 26,596
Later than one year and not later than five years BiB—FETEARE 55,325 54,847
Later than five years BBRF 8,840 18,771
81,413 100,214
(b) Capital commitments (b) HAE A )
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not yet RERBETNERREE 2 EARRED
incurred is as follows: T

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2016 2015
“E-RE CZ—ZT—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RERE 41 3,319
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32 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 32

CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

The assets and liabilities related to Merchant Support Co., Ltd and
its subsidiary (part of the payment processing solutions segment) (the
“Disposal Group”), 100% wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group,
have been presented as held-for-sale following a memorandum of
understanding entered by the Company, Merchant Support Co., Ltd
and an independent third party to sell the Disposal Group in Japan. The
transaction is expected to be completed in 2017.

(a) Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

TEA/FFEHEZHEENNE
ERAE

BBAAEE 2 ENE LR Merchant Support
Co., LAREMBRARAZEERAB(BX
NRIEBBATRESE2HH)(THEA
All1) - #7828 - Merchant Support Co.,
Ld R —BBLE=FF L EREER
AHERMNRZINAFELE - ZXHEAH
R T —LFRHK

@2 EAFEHEZHEMARNNEE

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—H

2016

—E-RF

HK$’000

FTERT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BF k& 7,530

Long-term deposits and prepayments RAFRLANFEA 160
Receivables from payment processing SRR RER 2

solutions business FEMRIA 133,464

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HihFEWFIR - AN PR RIS 3,191

Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEY 78,245

222,590

(b) Liabilities of Disposal Group classified as held-for-sale

b) T ERFELEZERNERE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—A8

2016

—B-XRE

HK$’000

FExT

Payables for payment processing solutions business 3 {- &k 5 R E7% 2 fE (4 5B 95,915

Other payables and accruals Hopth A FRIR N R AT RUR 520
Amount due to investment accounted for JERT AR E AR 2 18 & 2 ;I8

using the equity method 12

Current income tax liabilities BHMENAaE 33

96,480
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32 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 32 S EAEEHEZHEARNE

CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE (continued) ERAE(E)
(c) Cumulative income recognised in other comprehensive ORPEARELEZHEARER
income relating to Disposal Group classified as held-for- R EREES > B A
sale
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+-H
2016
ZE-RE
HK$'000
TEn
Exchange difference arising on translation of the BWEBSNIBARMBRRELCELEZR
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries 2,847
The expected consideration of the transaction is higher than the R EHRESNEREERABEZERA
aggregage carrying amount of the related assets and liabilities. Therefore, BE- Bt YEEIRESR TELE
no impairment loss was recognised on reclassification of the assets and ERBBREMDERFELE

liabilities and held-for-sale.
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BEAFRS
NZZ—XE+-A=1+—0 RNEBRE
ZEEFMAKIZ ZRich Global Limited# 5
RATF22.22%8M0 o 82 177.78% KA E A
BALHEA ©

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33
As at 31 December 2016, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in British
Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares. The remaining
77.78% of the shares are widely held.

(a) Transactions with related parties during the year: @QFRNEFAEL 2XS :
Except as disclosed below and elsewhere in the consolidated BRIXRGEMBRRAMBORES
financial statements, the Group has no significant transaction with oy RBEZZ—RF+A=+—H
related parties during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HFE - AEETEERETETHMD
same). BEARS (ZT—AHF : @A) -

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1t—-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE ZZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
Transactions with PAX Global, HEE N B H BIRER
an associated company: X5
- Rental income (Note i) —HERA(HED 1,505 1,604
- Purchase of electronic payment products -BEBFINER
(Note ii) G 134,889 148,505
- Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder — SHEMIRRINE RIS
chips (Note iii) (B 3Fiii) 31,726 39,061
Transaction with Cloopen, an associated company iR X 8] Cloopen 2 X 5
- Technical and support services charges (Note iv) — B R E MRS E B (Ffativ) 55,538 -

Notes: it

() RE-EHERRZEEUABARES
HEGE 2 EEERER -

(i) BEEF XN EmDRIEAREEE R
ERRMAVARA-_Z——F+_7
TR B ZAER 3 8 AR R R TT R
5o GERBBZIEIARKEHER-F
—hBF+ZA=+—B%E: -

(iNHEHGERMERBER IREASEE
—MBERRAR-E—=F+=-A=+—

(i) Rental income from an associated company was charged at a fixed monthly fee
mutually agreed between the two parties.

(i) Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant to the terms
and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered into by the Group
and an associated company on 19 December 2012. The terms and conditions
of the framework agreement has been renewed on 31 December 2015.

(iii) Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted pursuant to
the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered into by o S
the Group and an associated company on 31 December 2013. The terms and BT L2 AE R 1 T B MR K A A T 22

conditions of the framework agreement has been renewed on 30 December % ; AIER WJ_% Z {5 iﬂfi BEHER-F
2016. —NE+TZA=T—RE -

(iv) Bl B 32 % AR5 2 T AR 12 7 5% (B L — e gt
ERANZZE-RERANBITLZESR

(iv) Technical and support services fee were charged pursuant to the terms and
conditions set out in the framework agreement entered into by the Group and i = e ==y
an associated company on 9 May 2016. These related party transactions were 1 Eﬁ@ﬁﬁ’ﬂ &i%#m %: “'Z‘If EE%E\X
also the continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the HNELDRAZTHASRERRARE

Listing Rules. R e
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with investments accounted for using the equity

B Yo B e B ik

BELXS (&)

b) AEHEARZ RE 2 R

method
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
=F-A"F —F-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Amounts due from associated companies JE U B & R R RIR 13,258 7,764
Amount due from a joint venture il —RaEEFR - 2,997
13,258 10,761
Amounts due to associate companies (Note i) FE B & N B FRIA (ML) (81,480) (70,912)

Note:

(i) As at 31 December 2016, an amount due to an associated company of
HK$12,000 (2015: Nil) has been classified as held-for-sale (Note 32).

Balances with the associated companies and the Joint Venture are
denominated in RMB, unsecured ,interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(c) Key management compensation
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’ emolument
as disclosed in Note 35.

i

i) RZE—R"F+_A=+—H " EK=
L\ﬂz HIEH12,0008L (ZE—HEF:
Z) HEHBARBEHE (Mi32) -

RERBRNAEREZBBOUARE
B REER  THEREEREE -

OFEEEE2HE
BE_T—RFER-_ZT—HF+ZA
=t+t—HUEFE IEEEEMEMR
SRS BBECEEMS -
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

34 ARRAZEERBERRABED

RRFACEERER

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+-8H
2016 2015
—E-XE ZE—nfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
ASSETS 8E
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REME 2,568 2,825
Leasehold land MHE T 22,751 23,511
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRZEE 713,127 717,640
Investment accounted for using the equity method DEREARZIRE 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets FRBEELAE 998,216 1,003,746
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HtbEUHOR - ANFERES 2,504 2,382
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A RIFRIA 307,823 398,484
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 539,761 594,253
850,088 995,119
Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale DERFKELE CLEERINEE 128,856 -
Total current assets REBEEAE 978,944 995,119
Total assets EEAE 1,977,160 1,998,865
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 34 AARZEESBEREREESD
COMPANY (continued) (%&)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) ARRZEEEB/R(E)
As at 31 December
W+=A=1+-H
2016 2015
“E-RF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
EQUITY ‘@
Capital and reserves attributable to ARARBFAABERE
equity holders of the Company ke
Share capital e 6,942 6,942
Reserves s Note (a) Wit (@) 1,368,677 1,389,443
Total equity RRRE 1,375,619 1,396,385
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HA B3R R B AT SR 20,648 21,051
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT R B 2 RI5UR 566,093 566,629
Current income tax liabilities EHERAR 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities REBRERE 601,541 602,480
Total liabilities BfERE 601,541 602,480
Total equity and liabilities EaRAfRE 1,977,160 1,998,865

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 8 March 2017 and was signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG

BRYE
Director

EF

ARz BERBRAESFEN _T—+tH=H
NBEHAERERREE

LI WENJIN

=NE
Director

EF
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company

34

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ARmzEERERREFEEED
(&

N

ERBzEEEBR(E)

Wita)  KATZ GRS

Share  Contributed Other Retained
premium surplus reserves earnings Total
(Note)
B iRE BEHRH Hitvfide REEF &t
(BFEE)

HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TERT TERT FTET
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E—-H—H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 17,946 1,389,443
Loss for the year FHEE - - - (20,766) (20,766)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-RF+=A=t-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (2,820) 1,368,677
At 1 January 2015 R-E-H%-5F—-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 60,295 1,431,792
Loss for the year FREE - - - (42,349) (42,349)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-EF+=A=t-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 17,946 1,389,443

Note: Higt -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may make distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

RAFZ ESERSERE AT 2 HBRTR
HAFEBBARARURIZ B BTRATEL
28 - REERE— NN\ —ELTE AATEE
FERTRESRGDBEREADLRE LS
-
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out
below:

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

B Yo B e B ik

3 EECEARERZ(RERELT
%k Bl(%£622F ) £3831% - A
ABREESNZER)BROI(E
622GE)REBLTRAERE
HiE)

@ EBERTHAZHZHME
BREERITRARZMEHIIMT -

BE_Z-RFt_A=t—HLFE:

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

Remuneration ~ connection with

Employer's paidor  the management

contribution receivable  of the affais of

Estimated ~ toaretirement inrespectof  the Company

Discretionary Housing ~ money value of henefit ~ accepting office ~orits subsidiary

Fees Salary honuses allowance  other benefit scheme  asdirector  undertaking Total
fESEEER
FATAENE

eSS P
EEN  BEoEf  REB.CH  RBooHd

fe B¢ BRRL  BERE  GMERRE  BAUEHR  dRMME  BMRe it
HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOMD HKSOO  HKSOD  HKSOOD

T A7 T

A7 T A7 T A7 TER

Execufive Directors #figez
Chewng Yk ung 53k 30 - 100 1360
Kui Man Chun

(Chief Executve Offcer EER(TREH) 1920 5300 18 - - 72%
XuWensheng Bk 1,906 4800 18 - B 6,724
Li Wenj 318 140 400 18 - E 5458
Xo Chang heg 1,565 400 18 - - 550
Non-Executive Directors FunEs
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard® g i i
Independent Non- Evecutive Directors ~~ BUFH17ES
Tam Chun Fai Eli 162 - 10 )
Leung Wai Man, Roger R 162 - 10 i)
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richerd* Fitge 146 - 10 266
XuSitao** FEEw 19 - 19
Totl =) 670 6891 19,460 7 = - 713
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015:

Discretionary Housing
Fees Salary bonuses allowance
e ] Bl FEER

BRSO HKSOMD  HKSOO0 SO0
AT AR AT AL

35

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

@ EERITHARZME ()
BE-T-BFT-ASt-ALEE:

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

Remuneration  connection with

Employer's paidor — the management
contribution receivable  of the affairs of

Eimated ~ toaretiement invespectol  the Company

money value of benefit  accepting offce o s subsiciary
other benefit scheme asdiecor — undertaking Total

AR
HeBH  BEoBf REEZ

HEZREEE
FRTRENE
ERRE DAEHAG
B B

[EREE  REAEMR  SEMmE Eidie &t

HKS000 HK§000 HKS000 HK§'000 HKS000

T Tin L TR TR

Executive Directors 9figg

Cheung Yuk Fung FIk 360 - 30 - - - 660
Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Offcer) ~~ EBE(f73148) - 1,680 5,300 18 - - 7,19
XuWensheng X - 179 4800 18 - - 6,613
Li Wenjin INE 1380 4000 18 - - 5,39
u Chang Jun [FEE 1456 4000 18 - - 5474
Non-Executive Directors F917EE

Chang Ka-Tzung, Richard* g 13 - 100 35
Independent No-Executive Directors ~~ BU3E7%3

Tam Chun Fai 2 0 - 10 200
Leung Wai Man, Roger BRR 10 - 100 0
Yu Sitao* fEEm 10 - 100 0
Totl Aif 855 6511 18,800 7 : = 2638

*  Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard was re-designated as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 26 February 2016.

** Mr. Xu Sitao ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Direcrtor for the
Company on 26 February 2016.

* REEARERZE-—A"E-A=TBE
HAEAARRBYENTES o

A BELAN TR F-_A-+ HE
EARRBYIERTES -
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
during the year (2015: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2015: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, or
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors (2015: Nil).

(f) Directors’” material interests in transactions, arrangements

or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly to indirectly; subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2015: Nil).

B Yo B e B ik

3 EECEARERZ(RERELT
%k Bl(%£622F ) £3831% - A
ABREESNZER)BROI(E
622GE )REABLHHRAERKE
HiEE) (&)

(h) EERARER
FR - BEEZCELE S REIERERAK
BR(ZZ—0F &) -

© ESEBEN
FR - BBEESCLRBSRREMRER
BR(ZZ—0F &) -

OREREEREOE =TT 2K

&
REBEE-ZF-R"F+-_A=+—HLHF
& » AR BN B EUE RS T (3 (]
F=NXMRE(ZZ—HF E) -

©FBUES ZZESZZEFE
ErEEERAZBEAZER £
EXRAEMRZ 2ER
REBEE-Z-R"F+-_A=+—HLHF
B BEAEE  IRFEST IR
ERBEERARDSAZER  EERR
EtX % (ZT—1F &) -

N EERRE REHEHNZERE

3¢

m
BRI - ARBBERN FERLFRER
BRI AERARREENEPERLA
BREAEMNEARSRERANTELEH
ZEARG R RAH(ZFT—R2F:
')
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the consolidated — #i# BEEZHBRERIZERABREN 2 AEE
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted ~ BEREFBEECAMGAEEMGAEERS
from the audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set as EHREMT

below:

Year ended 31 December
HET-_A=Z+—HILFE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZB-R"¥ —T-n¥ T-WmOF —T-=F _—T-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET TET FHET

Results HE

Profit/(loss) attributable to EmEE AEG

equity holders whl,/ (E18) 283,964 183,486 397,071 30,045 (160,763)
Assets and liabilities BEERERE

Total assets BEBE 5,499,041 4,576,515 4,110,752 3,576,445 3,192,299
Total liabilities BEEE (1,913,374) (1,238,571)  (896,549)  (830,469)  (510,914)

Capital and reserves attributable to the A2 FRERIFH AR
Company’s equity holders RAR #E 3,531,216 3,308,828 3,192,381 2,759,360 2,626,095
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